CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
EXECUTIVE SESSION & REGULAR MEETING
THIS MEETING WILL HAVE REMOTE ACCESS VIA ZOOM*¢ (4 ckamas River Water
Held at 16770 SE 82" Dr. Clackamas, OR 97015
June 10, 2021 at 6:00pm
AGENDA

Public Comment: If there is a member of the public that wishes to address the Board are encouraged
to submit a request through email to kholzgang(@crwater.com no later than 4pm the day of the meeting.

Members of the public are welcome to speak for a maximum of three minutes, citizens must
state their name, address, if they are a customer or not for the record. Public comment provided
at the beginning of the agenda will be reserved for comment on agenda items, special
presentations, letters and complaints. Public comment as listed at the end of the agenda will be
for the purpose of “wrapping up” any remaining concerns.

To protect the health of our customers, staff, and commissioners, CRW’s Board of Commissionets and
most of its staff will attend this meeting through an online Zoom meeting. Anyone who wishes to attend
the meeting may do so by internet at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81571191199 or by calling the
following number 1-253-215-8782 and join meeting /81571191199#. Passcode: 247481

REGULAR MEETING @ 6:00pm
Call to Order and Roll Call — Sherry French, Board President

a. Approval of the Agenda
Recess Regular Meeting

MOTION TO RECESS REGULAR MEETING & OPEN SYSTEM
DEVELOPMENT CHARGES (SDC) HEARING

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE (SDC) HEARING

a. Public Comment on System Development Charges

MOTION TO CLOSE SDC HEARING & OPEN BUDGET HEARING

BUDGET HEARING

The hearing of the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners, Clackamas County,
Oregon will be called to order pursuant to ORS 192.640, 294.438 and 294.453, to allow
members of the public an opportunity to testify regarding the CRW budget as approved by
the Budget Committee on April 22, 2021 for the biennium July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023. The
budget hearing will be closed by board action and considered for approval on Agenda Item
#1.

b. Public Comment on Biennial 2021-2023 Budget

MOTION TO CLOSE BUDGET HEARING & RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

Public Comment (see blie box at the top of the agenda)
Next Page




Action Items

1. Resolution 04-2021 Adoption of Biennial Budget and Make Appropriations for BN
2021-2023- Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer

Consider Second Reading By Title Only of Ordinance 02-2021 System
Development Charges Methodology and adoption- Caro/ Bryck, Chief Financial
Officer

Consider Second Reading By Title Only of Ordinance 03-2021 System
Development Charges Fee Schedule and adoption-Caro/ Bryck, Chief Financial officer

Resolution 05-2021 Approve Utility Billing Bad Debt Write-Off for FY 2020-2021
Uncollectible Water Bills- Caro/ Bryck, Chief Financial Officer

Resolution 06-2021- Establishing Wholesale Water Rates Chatged to Suntise Water
Authority- Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer

Resolution 07-2021 Dissolve the Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund and CIP Bond
Construction Fund- Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer

Consider Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Clackamas County
for County Cotrections Work Crew Support- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Consent Agenda

CA-1: Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid: May 2021 Caro/ Bryck, Chief Financial
Officer

CA-2: Cash Position and Transfers: May 2021 Caro/ Bryck, Chief Financial Officer

CA-3:  Project Acceptance: Accept the capital project Forsythe Rd. Waterline—Phase
1, CIP 19-5251- Joe Eskew, Engineering Manager

Informational Reports

8. Management Report — Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
9. Public Comment (see blue box: at the top of the agenda)

Commissioner Business

10. Commissioner Reports and Reimbursements

Adjourn regular meeting

EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. Discuss information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection pursuant to

ORS 192.660 (2) (f) and 192.355 (9)

2. Conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor
negotiations ORS 192.660 (2) (d)

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for accommodations for persons with
disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Adora Campbell (503) 722-9226.




Agenda Item —1

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Resolution 04-2021 Adoption of Biennial (BIN) Budget and Make
Appropriations for BN 2021-2023
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution No. 04-2021, adopting the budget and making
approptiations for the 2021-2023 biennium.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 1, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer and Budget Officer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consider Resolution No. 04-2021, Adopting the Budget and Making
REQUESTED Appropriations for the 2021-2023 Biennium
DOCUMENTS 1. Resolution No. 04-2021 (as staff recommends)
ATTACHED 2. General Fund LB-31 (as staff recommends)
3. LB 1 as sent to Pamplin Media
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW Boatrd Policies — Section 3.1 (C) — Formulation of Budget
Documents and Section 3.2 (E) Budget Committee Membetship and
Responsibilities

ORS 294.438 — Publication of Hearing Notice and Financial Summary
ORS 294.453 — Budget Hearing
ORS 294.456 — Governing Body to Adopt Budget

The Budget Committee held a meeting on Apsil 22, 2021, which was
noticed according to ORS 294.426 and open to the public. The Budget
Committee approved the 2021-2023 Biennium Proposed Budget as
proposed. The Budget Committee declated “No Tax Levy™ as requited
for the 2021-2023 Biennium Budget.

The Budget Hearing and Financial Summaty wete published in the
Clackamas Review on May 26. The Budget Hearing was held just as patt
of this Board meeting, Testimony provided duting the public heating,
shall be consider by the Boatd as patt of this action item.

The approved budget may be amended by the Boatd ptiot to adoption.
However, the amount of the estimated expenditures for each fund in

June 10. 2027 Agenda Ttem 1 Page 1 of 2



STAFFE
RECOMMENDATION

June 10. 2021

approved budget may not be increased by mote than $10,000 ot 10
petcent of the estimated expenditutes, whichever is greatet.

Staff is recommending adoption of the BN 2021-2023 budget as
approved by the budget committee on Aptil 22, 2021, with the addition
of $116,300 in the Capital Outlay approptiation to move those costs from
BN 2019-2021 and into BN 2021-2023 as the vehicle cannot be delivered
until fiscal year 2022.

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 04-2021, adopting the
budget and making appropriations for the 2021-2023 biennium.

Agenda ltem 1 Page 2 of 2



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION No. 04-2021

A RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER FOR THE 2021-2023 BIENNIUM

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of ORS Chapter 294, the Board of
Commissioners for Clackamas River Water is required to adopt the budget and make
appropriations for the District for the 2021-2023 biennial period; and,

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2021, following public notice and meetings thereon, the duly

appointed and authorized Budget Committee approved the biennial budget proposed

for the 2021-2023 period, on file at the District office, and recommended adoption by
the Board of Commissioners; and,

WHEREAS on April 22, 2021, Clackamas River Water has the authority to levy taxes
and that the Budget Committee declared No Tax Levy be imposed on the ratepayers
of Clackamas River Water for the 2021-2023 period; and,

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2021, the Board of Commissioners held the Budget Hearing
following public notice thereon as required by ORS 294.453.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CLACKAMAS RIVER
WATER THAT:

Section 1: The Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River Water hereby adopts the
biennial budget as approved by the Budget Committee and modified by the Board of
Commissioners to include an addition of $116,300 to Capital Outlay appropriation in
the General Fund and for BN 2021-2023 in the total sum of $64,207,900 now on file
at the district office as required by ORS 294.556.

Section 2: That the amounts for the biennium beginning July 1, 2021, and for the
purposes shown below are hereby appropriated as follows:

GENERAL FUND

Appropriations:
Personnel Services $ 12,073,300
Materials & Services 9,490,700
Capital Outlay 1,799,300
Interfund Transfers 6,477,000
Operating Contingency 1,000,000

Appropriation Total (General Fund) $ 30,840,300



(Continued on next page)

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

Interfund Transfers Appropriation $ 6,288,000
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND
Capital Outlay Appropriation $ 6,288,000
CRWSC ACTIVITY FUND
Appropriations:
Personnel Services $ 136,000
Materials & Services 92,600
Interfund Transfers 1,850,000
Appropriation Total (CRWSC Activity Fund) $ 2,078,600
REVENUE BOND FUND
Debt Service Appropriation $ 2,477,000
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS: $47,971,900
Unappropriated Ending Fund and Reserved for
Future Expenditures $16,236,000
Total Budget $ 64,207,900

Section 3: The General Manager or his designee shall file with Clackamas County and
Oregon Department of Revenue information as required by ORS 294.458.

This resolution shall be deemed effective upon adoption. This resolution ADOPTED by
the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners on this 10th day of June 2021.

Sheryl French, Board President

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary



FORM LB-1 NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING

A public meeting of the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners will be held on June 10, 2021 at 6:00 pm via Zoom at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81571191199
passcode 247481. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the budget for the biennium beginning July 1, 2021 as approved by the Clackamas River Water Budget
Committee. A summary of the budget is presented below. A copy of the budget may be inspected online at WWW.CRWATER.COM. This budget is for a biennial budget

Contact: Sheryl French Telephone: 722-9220 Email: sfrench@crwater.com

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - RESOURCES

TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS Actual Amount Adopted Budget Approved Budget
Prior Biennium 2017 - 2019 | This Biennium 2019 - 2021 | Next Biennium 2021 - 2023
Beginning Fund Balance/Net Working Capital 33,999,003 16,731,000 19,213,000
Interfund Transfers / Internal Service Reimbursements 34,188,750 16,243,275 14,614,000
All Other Resources Except Current Year Property Taxes 32,382,010 31,013,100 30,380,900
[ Total Resources 100,569,763 63,987,375 64,207,900

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - REQUIREMENTS BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION

Personnel Services 9,199,171 11,540,600 12,209,300
Materials and Services 6,812,526 9,000,200 9,583,300
Capital Outlay 24,817,425 8,181,000 7,971,000
Debt Service 3,385,750 3,390,675 2,477,000
Interfund Transfers 34,188,750 16,243,275 14,615,000
Contingencies 750,000 750,000 1,000,000
Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure 21,416,141 14,881,625 16,352,300
[ Total Requirements 100,569,763 63,987,375 64,207,900

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - REQUIREMENTS AND FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES (FTE) BY ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM *

Name of Organizational Unit or Program
FTE for that unit or program

Administration Department 2,797,440 4,915,100 4,922,800
FTE 6.2 5.8 6.8
Water Resources Department 6,338,465 7,425,100 7,962,400
FTE 10.0 10.0 11.0
System Operations Department 3,699,561 6,479,400 7,238,600
FTE 11.0 18.0 18.0
Engineering Department 1,689,583 0 0
FTE 6.0 0.0 0.0
Finance, Accounting and Customer Services Department 2,486,356 2,851,000 3,123,200
FTE 8.0 8.0 8.0
CRWSC Activity Fund 247,639 281,200 228,600
FTE 0.0 0.0 0.0
Not Allocated to Organizational Unit or Program 83,310,719 42,035,575 40,732,300
FTE 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Requirements 100,569,763 63,987,375 64,207,900
Total FTE 41.2 41.8 43.8

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACTIVITIES and SOURCES OF FINANCING *

Clackamas River Water began biennial budgeting effective July 1, 2015. This is the District's fourth biennial budget. The total 2021-2023 biennial budget is up by
.34%, or $220,525, over the 2019-2021 adopted biennial budget. Resources: The District's
beginning fund balance increased by $2,482,000, 14.8% from the 2019-2021 biennium. Interfund transfers decrease 10.0%, or $1,629,275 over the 2019-2021
adopted budget as a reduction in funding requirements for capital improvement projects. Other resources decrease 2.0% due to reduced interest earnings on
investments offset by increase in water rates and sales. This budget includes the eighth year of the eight-year rate plan. A rate hearing is anticipated in fiscal
year 2022. Requirements: Debt Service decreased due to paying in full one of our
two debt issues. Transfers are also lower because of the reduced debt and reduced capital outlay. These reductions are offset by increases in personnel services
due to additional staffing requirements and materials and services.

FTE's: The total FTE's increase by 2 from the 2019-2021 biennium. An additional full-time position for Public Outreach/Communications will be filled in fiscal year
2022 and an additional water treatment plant operator position will be filled in fiscal year 2023.

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

LONG TERM DEBT Estimated Debt Outstanding Estimated Debt Authorized, But
onJuly 1. Not Incurred on July 1
Other Bonds $18,115,000 $21,885,000
Total $18,115,000 $21,885,000

150-504-073-2 (Rev. 11-18)



GENERAL FUND DETAILED REQUIREMENTS

LB 31

HISTORICAL DATA

Description of

BIENNIAL BUDGET FOR 2021-2023

BN 15-17 BN 17-19 BN 19-21 Resources and Requirements APPROVED INCREASE PERCENT
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (DECREASE) CHANGE
Personnel Services:
$ 5469915 $§ 5842559 $§ 6,753,800 Salaries $7,496,200 $ 742,400 10.99%
2,945,450 3,213,319 4,654,500 Benefits and taxes 4,577,100 (77,400) -1.66%
$ 8415365 $ 9,055877 $ 11,408,300 PERSONNEL SERVICES TOTAL $ 12,073,300 $ 665,000 5.83%
Materials & Services:
310,854 334,585 342,900 Customer Services 478,800 135,900 39.63%
531,895 705,165 809,700 Equipment 972,100 162,400 20.06%
456,340 481,805 699,300 Facilities & Security 797,000 97,700 13.97%
407,522 750,446 935,500 General Administration 1,046,900 111,400 11.91%
294,853 355,866 363,600 Materials 423,000 59,400 16.34%
124,502 105,989 170,900 Office 171,700 800 0.47%
207,469 157,529 308,600 Other Support Costs 350,600 42,000 13.61%
(408,516) (970,198) (530,600) Overhead Reimbursement (CIP Fund) (643,700) (113,100) 21.32%
1,492,216 1,258,020 1,911,600 Professional & Contracted Services 1,821,600 (90,000) -4.711%
1,376,890 1,451,296 1,753,400 Utilities 1,857,400 104,000 5.93%
2,343,429 2,077,680 2,086,400 Water Purchases & Treatment 2,215,300 128,900 6.18%
7,137,454 6,708,182 8,851,300 MATERIALS & SERVICES TOTAL 9,490,700 639,400 7.22%
Capital Outlay:

6,505 143,272 250,000 Land - (250,000) -100.00%
312,499 300,582 248,000 Improvements 950,000 702,000 283.06%
350,826 153,825 294,600 Vehicles 172,200 (122,400) -41.55%

73,959 506,550 384,200 General Equipment & Tools 328,000 (56,200) -14.63%
7,850 57,989 - Laboratory Equipment - - N/A
23,330 42,148 84,200 Computer Equipment 82,800 (1,400) -1.66%
37,547 42,982 150,000 Other 150,000 - 0.00%
812,516 1,247,347 1,411,000 CAPITAL OUTLAY TOTAL 1,683,000 272,000 19.28%
16,365,335 17,011,406 21,670,600 DEPARTMENT TOTALS 23,247,000 1,576,400 7.27%
Transfers & Contingency:
2,290,277 3,385,750 3,390,675 To Revenue Bond Fund 2,477,000 (913,675) -26.95%
- - - To CRWSC Activity Fund - - N/A
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 To Capital Reserve Fund 4,000,000 - 0.00%
750,000 General Operating Contingency 1,000,000 250,000 33.33%
6,290,277 7,385,750 8,140,675 TRANSFERS & CONTINGENCY TOTAL 7,477,000 (663,675) -8.15%
5,553,965 7,735,747 4,280,425 UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 4,553,500 273,075 6.38%
$ 28,209,577 $ 32,132,903 $ 34,091,700 TOTAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET $ 35277,500 $ 1,185,800 3.48%

The Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution No. 05-2015 authorizing biennial budgeting beginning July 1, 2015.



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 2

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SUBJECT Consider Second Reading by Title Only of Ordinance 02-2021 System
Development Chatges Methodology and Adoption

DRAFT MOTION Move the CRW Board Approve Carol Bryck, CFO to Conduct the Second
Reading by title only of Ordinance 02-2021 and adopt the Ozdinance

ErrECTIVE DATE None

PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, CIFO

PERSON

BOARD ACTION Consider Second Reading of the System Development Charges Methodology

REQUESTED Otrdinance 02-2021 by title only and adopt Ordinance 02-2021.

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance 02-2021 — Updating System Development Charge

ATTACHED Methodology for the Water System and Declaring an Effective Date
Exhibit B — Methodology memo from FCS Group

Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Clackamas River Water System Development Chatge methodology was

June 10, 2021

adopted via Ordinance 1-97 effective February 1, 1998. The chatges have
been updated annually indexed by the Engineering News Record (ENR)
Construction Cost Index (CCI) for Seattle, Washington.

Upon completion and adoption of the District’s Water System Master
Plan and other plans telated to capital improvements, the District
undertook a review of the System Development Charges methodology.
The results of the review and methodology options are contained in the
memorandum provided by FCS Group (Exhibit B). The Board held a
work session to review the memorandum and discuss the methodology
on February 22.

This Ordinance updates the SDC Methodology based on CRW assets as
of fiscal year 2020.

Oregon revised Statutes (ORS) 223.297 through 223.314 authorize local
governments to establish system development charges (SDCs}, one-time
fees on new development paid at the time of development. SDCs are
intended to recover a fair share of the cost of existing and planned
facilities that provide capacity to serve future growth.

Agenda Trem 1 Page 1of 2



ANALYSIS This Ordinance presents the Water System Development Charges as
calculated based on the 2019 Water System Master plan as adopted by the
Boatd of Commissionets using the meter capacity equivalents (MCE)
approach. This methodology 1s a common approach in the region.

Ordinance 02-2021 will supersede Ordinance 1-97 once it becomes

cffective.

June 10, 2021 Agenda Itern 1 Page 20f 2



EXHIBIT A

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
ORDINANCE 02-2021

AN ORDINANCE UPDATING SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE METHODOLOGY FOR THE
WATER SYSTEM AND DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Clackamas River Water adopted Ordinance 1-97 establishing system
development charges (SDC) methodology effective February 1, 1998, pursuant to
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 223.297 to 223.314 and the charges therefore, which
have been amended from time to time by various Resolutions and Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes 223.297 to 223.314 establish procedures to
provide a uniform framework for the imposition of System Development Charges by
governmental units for specified purposes and to establish that the charges may be
used for Capital Improvements; and

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes 223.297 to 223.314 provide procedures for
establishing a Methodology to determine System Development Charges; and

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the District intends to reconfirm the authorization for
system development charges for capital improvements pursuant to ORS 223.297 to
223.314 for the purpose of creating a source of funds to pay for existing system
capacity and/or the installation, construction, and extension of capital improvements to
accommodate new connections to the system; and

WHEREAS, these charges shall be due and payable at the time of permitted increased
use of the capital improvements that generate a need for those facilities; and

WHEREAS, the system development charges imposed are separate from and in addition
to any applicable assessment, charge, or fee otherwise provided by law or imposed as a
condition of development, and being fully advised,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
HEREBY ORDAINS THAT:

SECTION 1: Title

This Ordinance shall be known as “System Development Charge
Ordinance” and may be so referred to.

SECTION 2. Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall mean:

A. "Applicant" shall mean the owner or other person who applies for a
residential, commercial, industrial, or other connection to the District

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 1 of 14



water system, or who upsizes an existing meter connecting a parcel to
the District water system.

B. "Board" means the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River
Water.

C. "Capital Improvements" shall mean public facilities or assets used for
water supply, treatment, and distribution.

D. "Capital Improvement Plan" shall mean any Plan, Public Facilities
Plan, Master Plan, Capital Improvements Plan, or similar plan that
contains capital improvements upon which system development
charges are calculated.

E. "Citizen or Other Interested Person" shall mean any person whose
legal residence is within the boundaries of the District, as evidenced
by registration as a voter within the District or by other proof of
residency; or a person who owns, occupies, or otherwise has an
interest in real property which is located within District boundaries or
is otherwise subject to the imposition of system development
charges, as outlined in Section 3 of this ordinance.

F. "Connection" or "Connection Approval" shall mean physical
connection to, or an approval to connect to, the capital
improvements of the District.

G. "District" shall mean Clackamas River Water, a unit of local
government under ORS 264.

H. "Improvement Fee" shall mean a fee for costs associated with capital
improvements to be constructed after the effective date of this
ordinance.

I.  Meter Capacity Equivalents (MCEs) shall mean flow factors
proportionate to the safe operating flow capacity of a full 34-inch
meter, based on American Water Works Association (AWWA)
calculations and recommendations. MCE is the basis for the
potential demand method of SDC calculation.

J.  "Methodology" shall mean the system development charge
methodology required by ORS 223.301 (1) and (2).

K.  "Owner" shall mean the person holding legal title to the parcel upon
which a service connection or meter upsizing is to occur.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 2 of 14



"Parcel" shall mean any unit of land, lot or real property created by
subdivision or partition in compliance with any state statute or the
applicable planning and zoning codes and regulations; or by deed or
land sale contract if not created by subdivision or partition.

"Person" shall mean an individual, corporation, partnership,
incorporated association, or any other similar entity.

"Qualified Public Improvement" shall be defined as provided in ORS
223.304(3).

"Reimbursement Fee" shall mean fee for costs associated with
capital improvements already constructed or under construction
when the fee is established and for which capacity exists.

"Single-family housing" shall mean a detached dwelling unit,
constructed on-site, and located on an individual parcel.

"System Development Charge" or "SDC" shall mean a
reimbursement fee and/or an improvement fee assessed or
collected at the time of meter upsizing or connection to a District
capital improvement.

SECTION 3. Assessment of Charge

A.

A System Development Charge is hereby imposed upon new service
connections to the District’s capital improvements and upon the
upsizing of existing meters connected to the District’s capital
improvements.

System development charge rates shall be established and may be
revised or adjusted from time to time, by Ordinance or Resolution of
the District.

The system development charges imposed by this Ordinance are
separate from and in addition to any applicable tax, assessment,
charge, or fee otherwise provided by law or imposed as a condition
of development.

The SDC paid for a parcel shall be deemed to apply only to the
specific parcel and facility thereon and is not transferrable to
another parcel except as specified herein.

Where an existing service is located on a parcel that is partitioned
or subdivided, the owner may apply to the District to assign the

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 3 of 14



service and any existing system development charge credit to a
specific lot or apportioned among the lots that comprised the
original parcel. The owner of each parcel shall then pay the SDC
amount for the new or existing meter less the SDC credit assigned
to that parcel.

When a request or requirement for a larger service is made to the
District by an applicant for parcels within the District, SDC credit for
the existing service at the parcel will be granted.

a. Credit shall be given for inactive services or services
previously removed by the District, if that can be verified by
District records. No credit will be allowed for a service that
was removed based on the owner’s request, when verified by
District records.

b. Credit for the existing meter will be subtracted from the
determined SDC amount based on the District's current
adopted SDC schedule. If an available credit exceeds the SDC
amount, the balance shall remain with the parcel previously
receiving water service for no more than two years from the
date the credit is first used. No cash refunds shall be provided
for the amount of this credit.

c. SDC credits are non-transferable to other parcels within the
District unless contiguous parcels under the same ownership
within the District's service area are combined to facilitate
development.

d. SDC credits will only apply to parcels with accounts with the
District that are in good standing and have no unpaid charges.

SECTION 4. System Development Charge Methodology

A.

The methodology used to establish the reimbursement fee portion
of the system development charge shall take into account the cost
of then-existing facilities, prior contributions by then-existing users,
the value of unused capacity, generally accepted rate-making
principles employed to finance publicly owned capital
improvements, and other relevant factors identified by the District.
The methodology shall promote the objective that future system
users shall contribute no more than an equitable share of the cost
of then-existing facilities.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 4 of 14



B. The methodology used to establish the improvement fee portion of
the system development charge shall take into account the cost of
projected capital improvements needed to increase the capacity of
the systems to which the fee is related, and other relevant factors
identified by the Board.

C. The District adopts the MCE-based methodology set out in the
2021 “Water System Development Charge Update” by FCS Group,
attached hereto as Attachment A. Amendments thereto or adoption
of a new methodology may be adopted by ordinance or resolution
of the District.

SECTION 5. System Development Charge Plan

A. The Board has adopted the Water System Master Plan, which is
periodically updated. This Plan:
a. Lists the planned capital improvements that may be funded
with improvement fee revenues; and
b.  Lists the estimated cost and time of construction of each
improvement.

The Board may also incorporate by reference all or a portion of any Facilities Plan,
Master Plan, Capital Improvements Plan, or similar plan that contains the information
required by this Section. The Board may modify the projects listed in that Plan at any
time through the adoption of a Resolution.

SECTION 6. Collection

A. The System Development Charge shall be due and payable upon
tentative approval by the District to connect to the District system
or to upsize an existing meter. This Ordinance shall apply to any
parcel for which connection or upsizing approval has not been
given prior to the adoption hereof.

B.  If connection is made to the District’s capital improvements or an
existing meter is upsized without an appropriate approval and
payment of the applicable SDC, the applicable SDC is immediately
payable.

C.  The District shall not issue approval for connection or meter
upsizing until the SDC has been paid in full unless an exemption is
granted pursuant to Section 6E.

D.  In addition, each person making an application for connection shall
pay an inspection charge and all other applicable fees and costs

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 5 of 14



imposed by the District. The fees and charges shall be immediately
due and payable.

Notwithstanding Section 3A of this Ordinance, the following
developments shall be exempt from payment of the System
Development Charges:

(1) Fire-only service connections.

(2) Temporary connections for construction Purposes.

SECTION 7. Credits for Developer Contributions of Qualified Public Improvements

A.

The District may grant a credit against the improvement fee
component of system development charges imposed pursuant to
Section 3 of this Ordinance for the donation of land for, or for the
actual cost of construction of, any qualified public water
improvements set forth in the CIP.

Prior to the developer’s application to the governing jurisdiction for
a building or development permit, the applicant shall submit to the
District a proposed plan and estimate of cost for contributions of
qualified public water system improvements. The proposed plan
and estimate shall include:

(1) A designation of the development for which the proposed plan
is being submitted;

(2) A legal description of any land or interest in land such as an
easement or right-of-way proposed to be donated;

(3) A list of the contemplated capital improvements contained
within the plan;

(4) An estimate of proposed construction costs certified by a
professional engineer; and

(5) A proposed schedule for completion of the proposed plan.

The applicant shall have the burden of demonstrating that a
particular improvement qualifies for credit. The amount of credit to
be applied shall be tentatively determined according to the most
current and accepted standards of valuation:

(1) The value of donated lands shall be based upon a written
appraisal of fair market value by a qualified and professional
appraiser acceptable to the District. The appraisal will be based

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 6 of 14



upon comparable sales of similar property between unrelated
parties in a bargaining transaction; and

(2) The cost of anticipated construction of qualified public
improvements shall be based upon cost estimates certified by a
professional engineer and relevant District data as determined by
the Chief Engineer.

D.  Upon completion of construction and placement of the
improvement in service the actual credit shall be calculated based
upon the land value, if any, and the actual cost of the qualified
public improvement based on a verified accounting of costs
provided to the General Manager. The District may require such
documentation as it deems necessary to evaluate actual costs.

E.  The credit described in this Section 7 shall apply only to the
improvement fee charged for the type of improvement being
constructed. Credit under this Section may be granted only (i) for
the cost of that portion of the improvement that exceeds the
facility size or capacity needed to serve the development project,
or (ii) where their oversizing provides capital improvements usable
by the District.

F.  If a donation or construction of a qualified public improvement
gives rise to a credit amount greater than the amount of the
system development charge that would otherwise be levied
against the project receiving development approval, the excess
credit may be applied against system development charges that
accrue in subsequent phases of the original development project.
Any excess credit must be used not later than ten years from the
date it is given.

G. The decision of the General Manager as to whether to accept the
proposed improvement and the value of such contribution shall be
in writing and issued within fifteen (15) working days of the date
all data is received for review. Notification shall be provided to the
applicant via regular mail.

H. After completion of a qualified public improvement, the applicant
shall, within 30 days of completion, submit to the District an
accounting of actual costs. Upon District verification of such costs,
the credit shall be increased or reduced accordingly. If reduced,
the applicant shall pay to the District the amount of such reduction
in cash within 20 days of notice of such reduction.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 7 of 14



L Any applicant who submits a proposed plan pursuant to this
Section and desires the immediate issuance of a building permit or
development permit shall pay the applicable system development
charges. Said payment shall not be construed as a waiver of any
credit. Any difference between the amount paid and the amount
due, as determined by the Board, shall be refunded to the
applicant. In no event shall refund by the District under this
subsection exceed the amount originally paid by the applicant.

0 Credits shall be apportioned against the parcel which was subject
to the requirements to construct an improvement eligible for
credit. Unless otherwise requested, apportionment against lots
constituting the entire parcel shall be proportionate to the
anticipated public facility service requirements generated by the
respective lots or parcels. Upon written application to the District,
however, credits shall be reapportioned from any lot or parcel to
any other lot or parcel within the confines of the entire parcel
originally eligible for the credit.

SECTION 8. Review Hearings

A.  An applicant who is required to pay system development charges
shall have the right to request a hearing before the Board to
review any of the following:

a. The General Manager’s determination of the amount of SDCs
assessed or credits granted.

b. The General Manager’s denial of a proposed credit for
contribution of qualified public improvements pursuant to
Section 7.

c. A decision of the General Manager interpreting the provisions
of this Ordinance.

B. A review hearing shall be requested by the applicant within thirty
(30) days of the date of the General Manager’s written decision.
Failure to request a hearing within the time provided shall be
deemed a waiver of such right.

C.  The request for hearing shall be filed with the General Manager
and shall contain the following:

a. The name and address of the applicant;
b. The legal description of the parcel in question;

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 8 of 14



c. Ifissued, the date the tentative connection approval was
issued;

d. A brief description of the nature of the development being
undertaken;

e. If paid, the date the system development charges were paid;
and

f. A statement of the reasons why the applicant is requesting
review.

D.  Upon receipt of a request for a review hearing, the General
Manager shall schedule a hearing before the Board of
Commissioners at a regularly scheduled meeting or special
meeting called for the purpose of conducting the hearing and shall
provide the applicant written notice of the time and place of the
hearing. Such hearing shall be held within forty-five (45) days of
the date the request for hearing was filed.

E.  Such hearing shall be conducted in a manner designed to obtain
all information and evidence relevant to the requested hearing as
determined by the Board. Formal rules of civil procedure and
evidence shall not be applicable; however, the hearing shall be
conducted in a fair and impartial manner with each party having
an opportunity to be heard and to present information and
evidence.

F.  Any applicant who requests a hearing pursuant to this Section and
desires the immediate issuance of a connection or upsizing
approval shall pay, prior to or at the time the request for hearing
is filed, the applicable system development charges. Said payment
shall not be construed as a waiver of any review rights.

G.  An applicant may request review under this Section 8 without
paying the applicable system development charges as long as no
connection approval has been issued and no connection has
occurred.

H.  The decision of the Board shall be subject to writ of review under
ORS 34.010 to 34.100.

SECTION 9. Review of Methodology and Rates

A. This ordinance, the system development charge methodology,
and the capital improvement plan required by ORS 223.309 shall

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 9 of 14



be reviewed by the Board of Commissioners at intervals it deems
appropriate. The review shall consider new estimates of
population and other socioeconomic data, changes in the cost of
construction and land acquisition, and adjustments to the
assumptions, conclusions or findings set forth in the
methodology. The purpose of this review is to evaluate and
revise, if necessary, the rates of the system development charges
to ensure that they do not exceed the actual or reasonably
anticipated costs of the District's capital improvements.

B. Notwithstanding any adjustments made under Section 9.A. of this
Ordinance, the District shall annually review the SDC
methodology and rates in relation to the Engineering News
Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI) for Seattle,
Washington, or comparable index as adopted by the Board, for
the geographical region for which such index is prepared that
more appropriately reflects cost indexing for the Portland
Metropolitan Area. The Board may, by ordinance or resolution,
modify the District's SDC charges in keeping with such index. A
change in an SDC under this subsection shall not be considered a
modification to the SDC or methodology under ORS 223.297
through ORS 223.314.

C. In the event the review of the ordinance or the methodology
alters or changes the assumptions, conclusions and findings of
the methodology, or alters or changes the amount of system
development charges, the methodology shall be amended and
updated to reflect the assumptions, conclusions and findings of
such reviews. If changes in the methodology are undertaken by
the District, the District shall comply with the requirements of
ORS 223.297 through ORS 223.314.

SECTION 10. Receipt and Expenditure of System Development Charges

A. The District shall establish separate accounts for each type of
system development charge, which shall be maintained apart from
all other accounts of the District. All system development charge
payments shall be deposited in the appropriate account
immediately upon receipt.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 10 of 14



B. Reimbursement fees shall be applied only to capital improvements
associated with the systems for which the fees are assessed,
including expenditures relating to repayment of indebtedness.

C. Improvement fees shall be applied only to capacity-increasing
capital improvements, including expenditures relating to
repayment of debt for the improvements. An increase in system
capacity occurs if a capital improvement increases the level of
performance or service provided by existing facilities or provides
new facilities. The portion of the capital improvements funded by
improvement fees shall be related to demands created by
development. A capital improvement being funded wholly or in
part from revenues derived from the improvement fee shall be
included in the Capital Improvement Plan, Master Plan or other
plan adopted by the District pursuant to ORS 223.309.

D. Notwithstanding subsections B and C of this Section, system
development charge revenues may also be expended on the direct
costs of complying with the provisions of this ordinance, including,
but not limited to, the costs of developing system development
charge methodologies and providing an annual accounting system
for development charge expenditures.

E. The monies deposited in the above accounts shall be used solely
as allowed by ORS 223.307, including, but not limited to:

(1) Design and construction plan preparation;
(2) Permitting and fees;

(3) Land and materials acquisition, including any costs of
acquisition or condemnation;

(4) Construction of capital improvements;

(5) Design and construction of new water facilities required by the
construction of capital improvements and structures;

(6) Relocating utilities required by the construction of
improvements;

(7) Landscaping;
(8) Construction management and inspection;
(9) Surveying, soils and material testing;

(10) Acquisition of capital equipment;

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 11 of 14



(11) Repayment of monies transferred or borrowed from any
budgetary fund of the District which were used to fund any of the
capital improvements as herein provided;

(12) Payment of principal and interest, necessary reserves and
costs of issuance under any bonds or other indebtedness issued by
the District to fund capital improvements;

(13) Costs of complying with the provisions of ORS 223.297 to
223.314, including the consulting, legal, and administrative costs
required for developing and updating the system development
charges methodology report, resolution/ordinance, and capital
improvements plan; and the costs of collecting and accounting for
system development charges expenditures.

F.  Funds on deposit in system development charge accounts shall not
be used for:

(1) Any expenditure that would be classified as a maintenance
expense; or

(2) Costs associated with the construction of administrative office
facilities that are more than an incidental part of other capital
improvements.

G. Any capital improvement being funded wholly or in part with
improvement fee revenue shall be included in the District's capital
improvement plan. The capital improvement plan may be modified
at any time by the Board of Commissioners and shall:

(1) List the specific capital improvement projects that may be
funded with improvement fee revenue;

(2)  Provide the estimated cost of each capital improvement
project; and

(3)  Provide the estimated timing of each capital improvement
project.

H. Any funds on deposit in system development charge accounts
which are not immediately necessary for expenditure may be
invested by the District. All income net of the cost of investment,
derived from such investments shall be deposited in the system
development charges accounts and used as provided herein.

I. No SDC refund will be given for any reason, including without
limitation cases where an applicant wishes to downsize a meter.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 12 of 14



J. An annual report accounting for system development charges,
including the total amount of system development charge revenue
collected in the accounts, and the capital improvement projects
that were funded, will be made available for review.

K. Any citizen or other interested person may challenge an
expenditure of system development charges revenues.

(1) Such challenge shall be submitted, in writing, to the Board for
review within two years following the subject expenditure, and shall
include the following information:

a. The name and address of the citizen or other interested
person challenging the expenditures;

b. The amount of the expenditure, the project, payee or
purpose, and the approximate date on which it was made; and

. The reason why the expenditure is being challenged.

(2) If the Board determines that the expenditure was not made in
accordance with the purposes of this ordinance and other relevant
laws, a reimbursement of system development charge account
revenues from other revenue sources shall be made within one
year following the determination that the expenditures were not
appropriate.

(3) The Board shall make written notification of the results of the
expenditure review to the citizen or other interested person who
requested the review within ten (10) days of completion of the
review,

SECTION 11. Severability

If any clause, section, or provision of this ordinance shall be declared
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason or cause, the remaining
portion of said ordinance shall be in full force and effect and be valid
as if such invalid portion thereof had not been incorporated herein.

SECTION 12. Implementing Regulations

The Board may adopt, by Resolution, regulations, or administrative
procedures to implement the provisions of this Ordinance.

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 13 of 14



SECTION 13. Public Reading of Ordinance

Pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 198.540, the ordinance
was read at two regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners on
two different days, at least six (6) days apart and prior to the adoption
thereof.

SECTION 14. Adoption.

This ordinance was adopted by at least the affirmative vote of a
majority of the members of the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas
River Water at a public meeting.

SECTION 15. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect at 12:01 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time,
on July 10, 2021, being at least thirty (30) days from the date of its
adoption.

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

By:
Sheryl French, President

By:

Naomi Angier, Secretary

System Development Charges (SDC) Methodology Ordinance Page 14 of 14



WATER SYSTEM
DEVELOPMENT
CHARGE UPDATE

FINAL REPORT
February 2021

Washington

7525 166th Avenue NE, Ste. D215
Redmond, WA 98052
425.867.1802

Oregon

5335 Meadows Road, Ste. 330
Lake Oswego, OR 97035
503.841.6543

Colorado

1320 Pearl St, Ste 120
Boulder, CO 80302
719.284.9168

www.fesgroup.com

This entire report is made of readily

recyclable materials, including the bronze 0‘
wire binding and the front and back cover, L ) F ‘ S ‘ RO l | P
which are made from post-consumer .’

recycled plastic bottles.

P J Solutions-Oriented Consulting




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page i

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EIETOTUCTION ...ttt et bbbt et et bbb ses e et et e e b eae bbb eae et e s ebebsnssrsaeses 1
System Development Charge BACKGIOUNG. .. ..ot e e et e s s e s e s e r e 1
SDC CAlCUIBHON . ...ceeveiit bbbttt b e bbbttt a s e bt 2
OVBIVIBW ..ottt ettt et er sttt bbb ts et b s 4R £ 4 £ 4050044 ab b om0 bbb bbb bbb s s s et et 2
REIMBUISEMENE FBE. .. .coiiiiii ettt et et v e e s e am 05 15 184 s bk as et n s et ssest s srsen s 2
TMPFOVEIMENL FE.... oottt e et e s s s s eb s b s e s a s4 e b ekt emeE b et eEea e 1E b1 et ab bt e b nn 2
Adjustments 10 the COSt Basis ....iiiiiiiir st st e et et et ettt 2
CUSIOMET BASE & CAPACHY ....cviv ittt ittt b et b s s bbb et b s bbb tn b ot b s e eb et a e re s 3
EXISTNG DBIMANG. ...t e bt e sr o1 11 eh e s et a At e e e s ettt 3
Potentiat Demand and MCE CaloUlation. ... s s as s e e 3
Estimated Demand and EHU GalCtlation ... it s s eenesm st sssss s sesbenes 4
Fulure Alfocable CUSIOMET BASE ..o et s e e e e s ss s e ae e star e st e rene e enn 5
SUPPIY T TIBAIMBNL. ..o ettt e s e st s reaee e s e e e s esc bt b e e bt e e b st en et e e ens 5
R4 1+ T TP SO U U OO PR TSROSO 6
SO B . ettt ettt e et den et e et e eseetees et ee e eeeeteeneateeat et eeaeereateaaeteeieetterteireneere e terrerees 8
ReMbUISEIMENT FEE BaASIS. ...ttt e 10
08T BASIS ...t bt etk E LAtk £ £k eh S er st 10
Reimbursement FEe Cosl Basis CalCUlation ..o e e 11
IMPTOVEMENE FEE BaASIS.... .ot e ettt r et et bttt e s bbb e aeeeteeeteebs 12
COSE BASIS ...ttt ettt bttt bbb eh s S oo o kbbbt 4 ke ehree bt 12
Improvement Fee Cost Basis CalGulalion ... e b a e 12
System Development Charges.... oot bbbt s s e et e e 16
CBICUIALION ...ttt s b e et be bRt bbb bbb e s e bbb 16
Schedule of System Development Charges ... e et ers st ens s b1 16
Comparisons and fECOMMENTANION ..o e e bt e e ebe s te s b s et eeserires 17
SDC IMPIBMENTALION ...t bttt ebe bttt eb b 18

% FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

February 2021

System Development Charge Update page ii
CTBIES ettt ettt e r b s s R e r L b R e R e e AR e sheb et e e b e e sbarean e ertebeteeen 18
IPEEBXING «.veve vttt ettt b e bbbttt bR Lok bbbk h b s s bk 18

GLOSSARY

ADD
AWWA
CAAGR
CCl
CIAC
CwiP
CRW
EHU
ENR
FY:
GPD
GPM
MCE
MDD
MG
MGD
M&S
ORS
R&R
SDC
SFR
T&D
WSMP

average day demand

American Water Works Association
compounded average annual growth rate
construction cost index
contribution in aid of construction
construction work in progress
Clackamas River Water Disfrict
equivalent housing unit
engineering news record

fiscal year starting July 1 and going through June 30
gallons per day

gallons per minute

meter capacity equivalent
maximum day demand

million gallons

million gallons per day

meters and services

Oregon Revised Statutes

renewal and replacement

system development charge

single family residential
transmission and distribution
Water System Master Plan

%% FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 1

INTRODUCTION

In April 2019, Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Engineer) finalized the development of the Water System
Master Plan (WSMP) for Clackamas River Water’s (CRW) North and South Water Systems.
Following the completion of the WSMP, in 2020 CRW engaged FCS GROUP to update their system
development charges (SDCs) based on the capital improvement plan and capacity information
included in the WSMP.

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE BACKGROUND

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 223.297 to 223.314 authorize local governments to establish system
development charges (SDCs), one-time fees on new development paid at the time of development.
SDCs are intended to recover a fair share of the cost of existing and planned facilities that provide
capacity to serve future growth.

ORS 223.299 defines two types of SDCs:

@ A reimbursement fee designed to recover “costs associated with capital improvements already
constructed, or under construction when the fee is established, for which the local government
determines that capacity exists”

® An improvement fee designed to recover “costs associated with capital improvements to be
constracted”

ORS 223.304(1) states, in part, that a reimbursement fee must be based on “the value of unused
capacity available to future system users or the cost of existing facilities” and must account for prior
contributions by existing users and any gifted or grant-funded facilities. The calcuiation must
“promote the objective of future system users contributing no more than an equitable share to the
cost of existing facilities.” A reimbursement fee may be spent on any capital improvement related to
the system for which it is being charged (whether cash-financed or debt-financed) and on the costs of
compliance with Oregon’s SDC law.

ORS 223.304(2) states, in part, that an improvement fee must be calculated to include only the cost
of projected capital improvements needed to increase system capacity for future users. In other
words, the cost of planned projects that correct existing deficiencies or do not otherwise increase
capacity for future users may not be included in the improvement fee calculation. An improvement
fee may be spent only on capital improvements (or portions thereof) that increase the capacity of the
system for which i is being charged (whether cash-financed or debt-financed) and on the costs of
compliance with Oregon’s SDC law.

%% FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 2

SDC CALCULATION

OVERVIEW

In general, SDCs are calculated by adding a reimbursement fee component and an improvement fee
component—both with potential adjustments. Each component is calculated by dividing the eligible
cost by available future capacity in units of demand. The unit of demand becomes the basis of the
charge. Table 1 shows this calculation in equation format:

Table 1. SDC Calculation

Eligible Costs of Available Eligible Costs of Capacity
Capacity in Existing Facilities £ Increasing Capital Improvements _ 8DG parUnitiof Avallable Future
: : ; : Capacity
Units of Available Future Units of Available Future
Capacity Capacity

REIMBURSEMENT FEE

The reimbursement fee is the cost of available capacity per unit of available future capacity. In order
for a reimbursement fee to be calculated, unused capacity must be available to serve future growth.
For facility types that do not have available capacity, no reimbursement fee may be calculated.

IMPROVEMENT FEE

The improvement fee is the cost of planned capacity-increasing capital projects per unit of capacity
that those projects will provide for future users. In reality, the capacity added by many projects
serves a dual purpose of both meeting existing demand and serving future growth. To compute a
compliant improvement fee, capacity enhancing related costs must be isolated, and costs related to
meeting current demand must be excluded.

The capacity approach to allocate costs to the improvement fee basis was used. Under this approach,
the cost of a given project is allocated to growth by the portion of total project capacity that
represents capacity for future users. That portion, referred to as the improvement fee eligibility
percentage, is multiplied by the total project cost for inclusion in the improvement cost basis.

Adjustments to the Cost Basis

All accumulated SDC revenue currently available in fund balance is deducted from its corresponding
cost basis. This practice prevents a jurisdiction from double-charging for projects that were in the
previous methodology’s improvement fee cost basis but have not yet been constructed. For this
analysis it was assumed that the entire SDC fund balance was associated with the improvement fee
and deducted from the improvement fee cost basis. The adjustment described above does not impact
CRW’s existing credit policy.

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
Sysiem Development Charge Update page 3

CUSTOMER BASE & CAPACITY

The available future capacity calculation is the basis by which an SDC is charged. The charge basis
should approximate a pro rata share of total system costs (that is, charges that accurately reflect a
customer’s demand for system capacity). For water utilities, this is often related to either potential
demand or estimated demand. Estimated demand is often approximated by converting such factors as
customer type and customer size into equivalent housing units (EHUs) based on projected waier
wse, while potential demand is often measured by meter size or other surrogates for maximum
potential demand.

Water systems, generally, must be sized to meet potential demand. For example, while the estimated
demand for a commercial establishment served by a 1-inch meter may be no different than that of a
customer served by a 5/8-inch meter, its potential is 2.5 times that of the smaller meter (based on
American Water Works Association safe operating capacity by meter size) because of the additional
flow capacity. There are exceptions a water utility may consider when serving customers that require
large volumes without significant peaking.

For this analysis the charges are calculated in both potential demand, expressed in meter capacity
equivalents (MCEs), and estimated demand, expressed in EHUs.

EXISTING DEMAND

Potential Demand and MCE Calculation

According to CRW’s records, the water utility had 12,458 accounts in fiscal year (FY) 2020. The
standard meter size for CRW is a 3/4-inch meter, which equates to 1 MCE. Applying the MCE flow
factor ratios utilizing 3/4-inch equivalents by meter size results in 16,223 MCEs in FY 2020. Table 2
provides a summary of meter-based accounts, flow factors and MCEs. (The MCE calculation used is
based on American Water Works Association (AWWA) flow factors, proportionate to a 3/4-inch safe
operating flow capacity).

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 4

Table 2. FY 2020 Customer Data
MCE Factor

Accounts FY2020 (314" Equivalent)

314" 11,205 1.00 11,205

1" 750 1.67 1,250
112" 181 3.33 603
2" 246 5.33 1,312

3" 37 10.67 395

4" 19 16.67 317

6" 12 33.33 400

8" 2 53.33 107

10" 4 76.67 307
12" 1 112.50 113
18" 1 215.12 215
Total 12,458 16,223

Notes:

1. Flow factors based on AWWA Standards, 1984 and 1990.

2. Flow faclors for 18" mefer are based on regression analysis utllizing
smaller meter size dafa.

3. Includes wholesale accounts.

Estimated Demand and EHU Calculation

From the WSMP, Tables 3.13 Projected Parameters provided the definition of EHUs for each
system. This analysis used the medium definition of 166 gallons per day (gpd) per EHU for the north
system and 253 gpd per EHU for the south system. The charges developed for this SDC update are
system wide; therefore, a system wide weighted average gpd per EHU was derived using additional
WSMP data.

Section 3.5.2.1 of the WSMP defined the medium scenario for an EHU as the average single family
residential (SFR) gpd for the prior 4-year period. In order to calculate the system wide average gpd
per EHU, historical system specific data for SFR customers was utilized. The SFR accounts for each
system were multiplied by gpd per EHU for that specific system, and number of days per year to
estimate total demand. The north and south demand by year was combined and divided by combined
SFR accounts and number of days per year. The latest 4-year gpd per EHU were averaged to estimate
a system wide average of 202 gpd per EHU. Table 3 provides the summary of the system wide
average calculation for CRW.

Table 3. System Wide Average EHU

~ North b ~ South Total System

gpd/EHU SFR Accounts  Est. Demand gpd/EHU SFR Accounts  Est. Demand Est. Demand SFR Accounts  gpd/EHU
2013 169 6,709 413,844,665 245 4,920 439,971,000 853,815,665 201
2014 167 6,687 407,606,085 245 4,893 437,556,525 845,162,610 200
2015 166 6,754 409,224,860 269 4,901 481,204,685 830,429,545 209
2016 160 6,888 403,361,280 252 4,922 453,965,904 857,327,184 198
4-Year Average 166 253 ! 202
Notes:

1. Tables 3.8 of he North and South WSMP were used for SFR accountdah.
2. Tables 3.13 of he WSMP were used for he gpd/EHU dala.
3. Estmated demand was calculated by mul§plying gpd/EHU by SFR and number ofdays in a year accouning for 2016 leap year.

< FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 5

To calculate existing FY 2020 EHUs, the data from the north and south WSMP tables 3. 16 (north)
Projects Summary — Medium Scenario and 3.15 South System Demand Projection Summary —
Medium Scenario was used. The tables provided EHUs, average day demand (ADD) and maximum
day demand (MDD) for the years of 2017, 2028 and 2038. The EHU and gpd/EHU data were used to
calculate the system wide EHU projections for 2017, 2028 and 2038. The weighted annual average
compounding growth rate was calculated using the 2017 and 2028 projections and applied to the
2017 figures to estimate FY 2020 system wide EHUs of 40,193. Table 4 provides the summary of
the system wide calculation of the FY 2020 EHUs.

Table 4. FY 2020 System Wide EHUs

2017 2028
North EHUs 37,802 40,612 42,653
North gpd/EHU 166 166 166
North Demand - gpd 6,275,132 6,741,592 7,080,398
South EHUs 6,578 7,535 8,691
South gpd/EHU 253 253 253
South Demand - gpd 1,664,234 1,906,355 2,198,823
Total Demand - gpd 7,939,366 8,647,947 9,279,221
System Wide gpd/EHU 202 . 202 202

System Wide EHUs 42,171
CAAGR 0.78%
Fiscal Year EHUs CAAGR EHU w. CAAGR
2017 39,267 0.78% 39,573
2018 39,573 0.78% 39,882
2019 39,882 0.78% 40,193
2020 40,193
FY 2020 Estimated EHUs

Notes:

1. System specific EHU data is fom tables 3.16 (north) and 3.15 (south) of the north and

south WSMP.

2. CAAGR - cumulatve annual average growth rate.

FUTURE ALLOCABLE CUSTOMER BASE

Based on the review of the north and south WSMP, CRW’s existing system can support varying
levels of capacity based on the function of service of the system. Capacity information was provided
for the following functions:

1. Supply / Treatment
2. Pumping
3. Storage

Supply / Treatment

From the WSMP, Chapter 5 — Water Supply — North System indicates that CRWs existing treatment
plant was designed to support 30.0 million gallons per day (mgd). Due to operational constraints, the
operational capacity is limited to 23.0 mgd (rounded) as identified in Section 5.3.1 Comparison of

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 6

Projected Demand to Available Sources. Comparing 23.0 mgd supply / treatment capacity to the
existing MDD of 16.0 mgd, identified in Table 5.2 of the north WSMP, indicates that the system
currently has 30.4 percent of unused capacity.

Utilizing the unused capacity of 30.4 percent for supply / treatment and existing EHU and MCE
figures of 40,193 EHUs and 16,223 MCEs, future available capacity was calculated as identified in
Table S.

Table 5. Supply I Treatment Existing and Unused Capacity in EHUs and MCEs

Supply / Treatment % Share
Operational capacity 23.00 100.0%
Maximum day demand 16.00 69.6%
Unused capacity 7.00 30.4%

Supply / Treatment MCEs % Share

Exisiing 16,223 69.6%
Future (unused) 7,097 30.4%
Total 23,320 100.0%

Supply / Treatment EHUs % Share

Existing 40193 696% |

Future (unused) 17,584 30.4%
Total 51,777 100.0%

Existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs of 16,223 were divided by the current utilized supply / treatment
capacity share of 69.6 percent to estimate the total supply / treatment capacity expressed in EHUs
and MCEs. The net difference between the total capacity EHUs of 57,777 and MCEs of 23,320 and
existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs 16,223, respectively, was calculated to be the unused share of
existing available supply / treatment capacity, which is 17,584 EHUs and 7,097 MCEs.

The WSMP for either system does not include capacity enhancing supply treatment projects;
therefore, future available capacity EHUs of 17,584 and MCEs of 7,097 remain the same under the
existing system and after the improvements identified in the CIPs are implemented.

Pumping
Chapter 6 of both WSMPs provided the firm and required capacities for each booster pumping
station. The CIP in the WSMPs did include projects associated with expanding capacity. Tables 6

and 7 provide the summary of existing and future firm and required capacities as well as pumping
capacity expressed in EHUs and MCEs, using data for planning year 2019 from the WSMP.

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 7

Table 6. Pumping Firm and Required Capacity

WP . Required  Existing Firm  Future Firm
umping

Exist. (gpm) (gpm) (gpm)

Mather 11,338 15,300 18,900
Oty 2,427 4,500 4,500
Kirkwood 41 - 100
Redland-Mather 2,900 3,889 3,889
Beavercreek 1,575 2,083 2,083
Henrici 478 750 750
Holcomb 684 - -
Barlow 53 - -
Hunter Heights 1,045 430 1,130

Total 20,541 26,952 31,352
Notes:

1. Otty represents 90th and Harmony.
2. Redland-Mather's pumping is performed through the Hatian Pump Station.

Table 7. Pumping Existing and Future Available Capacity in EHUs and MCEs

Pumping

Existing required capacity 20,541 76.2%
Existing available capacity 6,411
Existing firm capacity 26,952 100.0%

Exisfing required capacity 20,541 65.5%
Future available capacity 10,811
Future firm capacity 31,352 100.0%

Pumping - Existing Available MCEs % Share

Existing 16,223 76.2%

Future (unused) 5,063 23.8%
21,286 100.0%

Pumping - Existing Available EHUs % Share

Existing 40,193 76.2%
Future (unused) 12,544 23.8%
Total 52,737 100.0%

Pumping - Future Available MCEs % Share

Existing 16,223 65.5%

Future 8,538 34.5%
24,761 100.0%

Pumping - Future Available EHUs % Share

Existing 40,193 65.5%
Future 21,154 34.5%
61,347 100.0%

% FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 8

Similar to the supply / treatment discussion above, existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs of 16,223
were divided by the current utilized pumping capacity share of 76.2 percent to estimate the total
pumping capacity expressed in EHUs and MCEs. The net difference between the total existing
pumping capacity EHUs of 52,737 and MCEs of 21,286 and existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs of
16,223, respectively, was calculated to be the unused share of existing available pumping capacity,
which is 12,544 EHUs or 5,063 MCEs.

Once the CIPs in the WSMPs are implemented, the available future pumping capacity will increase

to 34.5 percent compared to the existing capacity of 23.8 percent. Performing the same calculation
discussed above will result in future available pumping capacity of 21,154 EHUs or 8,538 MCE:s.

Storage

Chapter 6 of both WSMPs provided the existing and required storage capacity. Similar to the supply
/ treatment function, the CIP in the WSMPs did not include projects associated with expanding
capacity. Tables 8 and 9 provide the summary of existing and future storage capacity and
requirements as well as storage capacity expressed in EHUs and MCEs, using data for planning year
2019 from the WSMP.

Table 8. Storage Required and Available Capacity

Storage Existing Existing
Required (MG) Available MG |
Mather 6.83 14.00
Otty 5.51 6.80
Henrici 1.21 1.55
Beavercreek 1.85 3.50
Redland-Mather 1.23 2.00
Hunter Heights 1.05 1.20
Barlow 0.27 0.23
Total 17.95 29.28

Notes:
1. MG capaciies may include rounding.
2. Based on WSMP, Beavercreek Elevaled Reservoir is counted as
available capacity, but only if added withing the first 10-year window.

< FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 9

Table 9. Storage Existing and Unused Capacity in EHUs and MCEs

% Share
61.3%

Storage

Existing required 17.95
Existing available capacity 11.33
Existing firm capacity 29.28

100.0%

Storage MCEs % Share

Exisling 16,223 61.3%
Future (unused) 10,240 38.7%
Total 26,462 100.0%

Storage EHUs % Share

Existing 40,193 61.3%
Future (unused) 25,370 38.7%
Total 65,562 100.0%

Consistent with the supply / treatment and pumping sections, existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs of
16,223 were divided by the current utilized storage capacity share of 61.3 percent to estimate the
total storage capacity expressed in EHUs and MCEs. The net difference between the total storage
capacity EHUs of 65,562 and MCEs of 26,462 and existing EHUs of 40,193 and MCEs of 16,223,
respectively, was calculated to be the unused share of existing available storage capacity, which is
25,370 EHUs and 10,240 MCEs.

The WSMP for either system does not include capacity enhancing storage projects; therefore, future
available capacity EHUs of 25,370 and MCEs of 10,240 remain the same under the existing system
and after the improvements identified in the CIPs are implemented.

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 10

REIMBURSEMENT FEE BASIS

COST BASIS

The reimbursement fee is the eligible cost of available capacity per unit of growth that such available
capacity will serve. Calculation of the reimbursement fee begins with the historical cost of assets or
recently completed projects that have unused capacity to serve future users. For each asset or project,
the eligible cost is the cost portion of the asset or project that is available to serve future users.

To avoid charging future development for facilities provided at no cost to CRW or its ratepayers, the
reimbursement fee cost basis must be reduced by any grants or contributions used to fund the assets
or projects included in the cost basis. Furthermore, unless a reimbursement fee will be specifically
used to pay debt service, the reimbursement fee cost basis should be reduced by any outstanding debt
related to the assets or projects included in the cost basis to avoid double charging for assets paid for
by debt service in the rates.

CRW’s records list $115,882,793 in water fixed assets, net of small vehicles, and $10,482,495 in
construction work in progress as of the end of FY 2020. These assets were then allocated into six
functional categories:

1. Supply / treatment
Pumping

2

3. Storage
4, Transmission & distribution
5

Meters & services
6. General

It was determined that in five of these six categories there was available capacity for future users.
The meters & services category was deducted since it is paid for through a separate fee. Customer
Base & Capacity Section of this report provides the available existing capacity to future users for the
supply / treatment, pumping and storage functions. The WSMP did not provide equivalent
information for the transmission and distribution function; therefore, it was assumed that the
transmission and distribution assets are sized to support the available supply / treatment capacity.
The general assets were assumed to be in support of the rest of the system and allocated as all other
allocable assets. Table 10 provides the summary of existing capacity available to future users by
function of service.

Table 10.  Available Existing System Capacity

 Available Existing Unused Supply/ : Trans. &
Capacity Treatment Pumping LT Distribution
% Available unused capacity 30.43% 23.79% 38.70% 30.43%
Notes:

1. Supply / reatment identified in table 5 of this report

2. Pumping identified in table 7 of this report

3. Storage identfied in table 9 of this report

4. Transmission & distribution assumed to be equivalentto supply / treatment

< FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 11

REIMBURSEMENT FEE COST BASIS CALCULATION

The reimbursement fee cost is calculated by multiplying the capacity share of each asset category by
the net asset value (original cost less contributions) of that category. General plant is allocated as the
total capacity share of all other assets. Table 11 provides the summary of the reimbursement fee cost
basis calculation.

Table 11.  Net Reimbursement Fee Cost Basis

Reimbursement Fee Cost Basis LA Pumping Storage General
Treatment
Plantin service $ 17,671,328 $§ 9,197963 $ 11,201,208 § 65912412 § 5396797 $ 6,503,085 § 115,882,793
plus: CWIP 167 45,843 9,390,467 1,077,227 - (31,209) 10,482,495
less: Meters & services (5,396,797) (5,396,797)
less: CIAC (6,589) (6,590) (17,591)  (11,856,238) (11,887,008)
Net plant in service $ 17,664,905 $ 9,237,217 § 20,574,084 $ 55133400 § - $ 6,471,876 "$ 109,081,483
Reallocafon of General 1,114,175 582,617 1,297 665 3,477,418 (6,471,876) -
Adjusted net plant in service $ 18,779,080 $ 9,819,834 $ 21,871,749 § 58,610,819 § - $ - $ 109,081,483
Unused capacity 30.43% 23.79% 38.70% 30.43%
Reimbursement fee cost basis $ 5715376 $ 2335818 ¢ 8,463,351 § 17,838,075 § - $ - $ 34,352,620
less: unused share of exising debt (958,023) (306,010) (1,803,693) (2,990,057) . (6,057,783}
Net reimbursement fee cost basis § 4751352 § 2029808 § 6,659,659 $ 14,848,018 § $ 28,204,837

Notes:
1. Capacity perceniages are notrounded, which may cause difflerences if applying them o the second decimal point

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update : page 12

IMPROVEMENT FEE BASIS

COST BASIS

An improvement fee is the eligible cost of planned projects per unit of future capacity that such
projects will serve. For this section, capital improvement information was obtained from Chapter 8 of
both North and South WSMP.

IMPROVEMENT FEE COST BASIS CALCULATION

The improvement fee cost basis is based on a specific list of planned capacity-increasing capital
improvements. The portion of each project that can be included in the improvement fee cost basis is
determined by the extent to which each new project creates capacity for future users. Tables 12, 13
and 14 show project specific and summary improvement fee cost basis information.

Table 12.  Net Improvement Fee Cost Basis

SueRyl Pumping Storage General

Improvement Fee Cost Basis

Treatment

Tolal capital improvement program $ 500,000 $ 6374000 $ 8,250,000 $ 291,074,000 $ 800,000 306,998,000

less: renewal and replacement share (347,826) (5,039,003) (7,572,831)  (253,531,565) (530,459)  (267,021,684)
Net capital improvement program $ 152,174 § 1,334997 $ 677,169 § 37,542,435 § - $ 269,541 TS 39,976,316

Reallocaton of General 1,033 9,062 4,597 254,849 (269,541) -
Adjusted capital inprovement program $ 153,207 § 1,344,060 § 681,766 $ 37,797,284 $ - $ - $ 39,976,316

less: improvement SDC fund balance (5,974) (52,405) (26,582) (1,473,724) (1,558,685)
Netimprovementfeecostbasis ~ § 147,233 § 1201655 § 655183 § 36,323,550 § - § 38417631

Notes:
1. Capacity percentages are notrounded, which may cause differences if applying them to fhe second decimal point

Note, the net capital improvement program is reduced by any improvement fee revenue currently
held by CRW to avoid double-charging for projects that were in the previous methodology’s
improvement fee cost-basis, and are also in the current WSMP, but have not yet been constructed.

“» FCS GROUP



dNOYD SOF <

S29've9'sk  § | | sT9LoM'e $ 000'293'6 S 000'6€Z'¥Sh § 000°LL6'GL  § 000't89'6sk spofoig woyshs YuoN [e3oL
54204 02-1} 000'LL %EY0E a3l %05 %05 %0 000'905 odig moN eay sbulwier 35 0g-
1204 0z-1} 8 %EV'0E asL %0 %001 %0 000'%9 eAYPII03S 620
$180A 0}-6 z %S 08 asl %0 %001 %0 000'9%5 Py squy oL pyeye]  gz-Q
1204 0}-6 269'6hL %EY 08 sl %05 %08 %0 000°008'y () weweoe|dey enuany puzg 1z-a
s1eek 0z-1} 0EL'bY %EY'0E a8l %00} %0 %0 000's7} SuewsAOICW| IS UoSLYer  92-Q
sieak z-11 80118 %EV0E asL %05 %08 %0 000'e8S peoy uessaly 3§ 52-Q
51204 0}-§ E %EH'0E asl %0 %001 %0 000ty Bussou) 607 | AmH - peoy 00y 92-Q
s1g04 0}-5 £ %ET 08 asL %0 %001 %0 000'ELE"S "PY POOANYIY [ Sd poORUY [ BUET Aagmels [ plosue  £2-Q
SIBOA G-| E %E¥ 0E gzl %0 %001 %0 00087 (Meweoedey sug puzg  2z-0
120k G-} 000'250'G1 %EV'0E asl %0 %0 %00} 000°250'51 adid MaN JonIB5BY BAY PUZGL G SdTH 12-0
sieek gl-g . %EY 08 asl %0 %004 %0 000'8L0°E (2)juawesedey eauq puzg 0z-a
sieak 0z-1) BEL'8S %EY 08 asL %004 %0 %0 000264 ezsdn eddeny yss3s  6L-Q
sieak 0z-|1 000'€9 %EV0E a8l %004 %0 %0 000202 szsdneddisiuionas  gl-Q
sieak 0z-|1 8EL'6C %EY0E asL %004 %0 %0 000'8L ezsén edig)) poomuelg 35 L4+
4204 07-11 16655 %EY 08 asl %00L %0 %0 000284 ezisdn adig Py Jeo|4as 35 9-a
sieok 0z-11 5188 %EY0E gzl %08 %08 %0 000'584 ozsdn odid Py J@sqem 3s 510
5894 02-41 8Ly'ee %EY 08 asl %05 %08 %0 000'022 ezsdn edidig eaysM 3S  pl-Q
sieak 0g-|1 ELE'PEL %EV0E asl %001 %0 %0 000505 ez7i5dn adid py UNBO IS PUB PY UGSSAYL 35 €10
sieok 0z-|1 225'8L %EY0E asl %00L %0 %0 000852 ezsdn edidi Jaueued 35 Z-Q
sseak 0z-41 969'622 %EY'0E asl %00} %0 %0 000'5EL oz5dn 9dlg 1S 03 3§ pue py yosny 3§ L-a
s1e0k z-1} 000'LL %E¥'0E asl %05 %08 %0 000905 adid Mo JQise0i0ply IS/PY LN} 38 0L-Q
sieak 0z-1} 22s's) %EY 08 asL %05 %05 %0 000204 ezsdnedigio ueAy3s 600
sieak 0z-11 ne'ee %EY'08 asl %004 %0 %0 000'¢L 6215dn) od/d epeuawold sawexe|g e Py episAuung 3§ 80-0
51204 02-1} £v0'se %EY'0E asl %001 %0 %0 000524 ezsdneddious.as  L0-Q
sieok z-11 225'08 %E7 08 asL %08 %05 %0 000'2€€ ozsdp odid 3 eyoiqued 35 pu UTBWEED IS 90-Q
51204 02-1} £84'€0L %EY08 a3l %001 %0 %0 000'k¥E ezsdn edid ey pug/ 35 50-0
1204 0z-1} 609'504 %SY'0E azl %001 %0 %0 00024 odid Mo Jopluog Jaembuuds  y0-Q
SIB0A G-| 596'v82 %E7 08 a8l %001 %0 %0 00056 adid MeN pAg yea.D uosuyor  £0-Q
54204 02-1} $08'8 %59 08 asl %00} %0 %0 000'242 ezsdnedgigered3s  Z0-0
steak z-1} = %S0 08 agl %0 %001 %0 000124 Py uesuuer 35 10-Q
ouyadig uopnquisiq
sieek 0z-1} - %83Y'VE Guidung %0 %004 %0 000'000'¢ uohesioeyey g Jedey uojeg dund  50-Sd
sieed g-1} g %8h've Buidung %0 %001 %0 000052 ucgen|eA3 uoypuoD UoIBS dund  $0-Sd
51294 02-1} 102'9Z %8Y'vE Buidung %001 %0 %0 00082 uogeg dung poomylly  Z0-8d
sizeh gl-g 000'6Z§ %8Y'vE Buidung %0 %0 %00} 000'525 uoselg dundyublH  L0-8d
uopeys dwng
sieadk 0z-1} : %04'8¢ ebeiag %0 %00} %0 000'000'} uoymigeyey P Jedoy obeias  £0-LS
Sieok -1} # %0L'8¢ ebeiag %0 %001 %0 000°05T uojenjeag uoypuog ebeias  Z0-1S
51804 O1-5 L0E'90% %04'8¢ abeiqg %001 %0 %0 000'050' sjue) Bugxs e sonep uoselos| amsies  |0-1S
obeieys
Sieek 0z-1} ZiLsL %87've Buidung %004 %0 %0 000'y 2UOZ OOV Jeal ee.e einsseld Mo BUOZ BN  10-Zd
QUOZ dinssilg
sieak z-1} E %EY 0E asl %0 %004 %0 000'140'59 wedboid sujedid wasAg amwsies  g0-d
sieeh 0z-} 4 %EY0E asl %0 %004 %0 000'E71'SS weiboid eujedigjuawsoedey § Jedey 10~d
onewwesbold
S1eoh 0z-1| 58€'L9 %69'6C [esoueg %00} %0 %0 000002 ueld Jasep wasAS JAEM BE0Z  £0°D
siesh 0)-g 58E'LS %69'¢6 [eJouaD %001 %0 %0 000002 ueld Jasely WASAS JARM 8207 Z0-D
58 g-| 180°9L $ %Er'0E juedgees | [ Addng %00L %0 %0 000°052 $§ ueld Ayjoe owisieg puy jueld juauses. | et 109
Jesousn

O o T _S““m_ﬂ_wﬂ.a“”& ;oﬁ”ﬂﬂ__ﬁ_& 5 Sa s100[o1d wiolsAg yyoN - uopduaseg
siseq }s09 Juswanoidw| ay} jo uoiuod waishs yuop auioads 108loid '€} 9|qel
¢| abed ajepdn abieun Juswdojarsg Weshs

120z Aeniged d3LYM H3ATE SYINYADYTO



dNOY¥D SO ¢

sieak 0z-1 0L8'L¥'e %Eb'0E asL %00°001 %00'0 %00°0 000'60€"} b aCld M3N Py IEGQUIY S/PY 3MUIH S ‘azisdn Py IIN SJaUuosid 08
sieak 0z-11 725'85€ %EY0E a3l %00°00L %00'0 %000 000'8LL'L adig MaN D UBSIO S/PY BPIS S 'PY UBWIONS  6v-(
sieak 0z-) co0'el) %EY0E gl %00°05 %0005 %000 000'€7L azsdn adig U7 sgue) g 8-
s1eak 0z | #08'Sy %EY0E asL %00°0§ %00°0§ %000 000°10€ azisdf adid py wogsying § 4-a
s1eak 0z-)) 0EL'BYL %EY0E asL %0006 %00°0G %000 000'086 adig moN py uewyosg 3§ Gp-Q
sieak 0z-11 BEL'LLG %EY 08 asL %00°00% %000 %000 000'040'2 adid MeN PY PUEIPY S Sp
s1eak 0z-1.| vV pYS %EY'08 asL 9%00°004 %00'0 %000 000'884'} azsdn edid Py NGNS pp-Q
sieak 0z-1) 959'281 %EY0E a3l %00°00} %000 %000 000'029 8zsdn sdid JQWed S pue U7 JSmoppIm S\ €
sieak 0g-4 725'651 %EY 08 asL %00°05 %0005 %000 000'220' aasdn 8dld10 4008 § PUE Py POOMBPUES S 240
sieak 0z-|1 £16'50L %EY08 L 9%00°00% %00°0 %000 000'87E azsdn adid JQ seioy 280 § W-a
sieak 0zZ-11 0€9'eYZ %EY0E Q3L %0005 %00°05 %00°0 000'409' szsdn adid U7 ApnT g pUR QXIS OF0
sieof G-} 96165 %EY 08 asL %00°05 %0005 %000 000's8¢ azsd adidig poomatp3 3 8c-0
s1eafk 0g-11 SEY'S0T %EY0E asL %0000} %000 %00°0 000'629 azsdn adid PAE QUOJIOH S 88-0
sieak 0z-11 €820 %EYy0E asl %00°00} %000 %00°0 000'¥E L azisdn adid JQ Ja4oiy § 160
sieak 0z-}) POB'EYL %EY 08 asL %0005 %00°05 %000 000'6+6 adid pYNOOURA0S 98-
s1gak G-) = %EY 08 3L %00'0 %00'00L %00°0 000'799 peoy Aalpe.g 5e-g
sieaf g-| - %EF 08 asL %00'0 %0000 %000 000'988 (z) peoyy awfsiog ¥e-a
sieak g-| - %E7 08 a8l %00°0 %00°001 %000 000'996 (1) peoy ayfsiog €e-a
siesk 0g-1) 78'e8) %EY 08 aslL %00°05 %00°05 %000 000'202' szsdn adid py JouUng S 260
sieak 0z-1 LBE'E9E %EY 08 gl %00°00} %000 %00°0 000'%61'4 adig maN jsa1) mojeg le-a
aujjadid vopnquisig
sieah 0z-1L - %87 V€ Buiduing %000 %0000} %000 - uojeiqeyay g Jeday uolag dund  60-Sd
sieak 0z-11 - %87 V€ Buiduing %000 %0000} %00°0 000'052 uogenfesd uoppue) Lolais dund  %0-Sd
sieak 0Z-41 668902} %8 V€ Budwng %00°001 %000 %000 000'05€ uoygs dwng syblsH Jsbuny  £0-8d
uones dung
sieak 0z-}1 s %0.'8E abeiag %000 %00°004 %000 000'000'S ucheyigeyay ¢ Jedey abeiags  £0-1S
sieah 0z-11 # %0L'88 sbeiag %00°0 %00°004 %000 000'052 uogenjeag uogpuo) efeias  z0-1S
sieak )¢ 198'042 %04 8€ sbeiag %00°004 %000 %000 000'00Z sjue | Bupsixa 1o sanep UCIB|oS| JWSIBS  10-LS
abesojs
sieak 0g-4L 626'479 %87 V€ Buiduing %0000} %000 %000 000'68'} 8U07 BINSSald %391013AB3G MAN  Z0-Zd
QuoZ asnssald
sieah 0g-4L - %EY 08 asl %000 %00°00L %000 000'046' Ly wesboid susdid WASAS JWSIOS  20~d
sieeh 0z-| £ %EF 08 a3l %000 %00°004 %00'0 000'656'22 weiBold sujadid uswaoziday 3 Jedsy 10-d
anewwesfiold
sieah 0z-11 G8e'/9 %89'EE [eJausn %00°004 %0070 %000 000'002 ueld Jasely WaAsAS JMEM 8602 £0-0
S1EBA )G S8E'L9 %68 EE [EIEES) %0000} %00°0 %000 000002 Ugld Jasely wasks J@em gz0z - 20-0
sieaf g-| 180'92 $ %EF 08 juaweal | / Addng %00°00 %000 %000 000'052 ueld Alloe JWSISS PUY IUB|d JUaUABa. | JaBM 10-a
ILEELED]

fyoeden aimny) M juswaroidu , juswianesdu fyoedeg
: w_em_m _zhpb _owim _:_ua_mu R Sl ek i by

siseg 3509 JuswaAoidui| ay} JO UOIMO WalsAg ynog aipioadg Joslold "yl 9|qel

Bujwi| pajew(isy

1 abed s1epdn abiey) juswdojaneq walsAs
120z Atenigad HILYM HIAIS SYWYMIVTO



dNOYD SO €&

Bujwii pejewyis3
L

G| abed
120z Asenige

ajqi6y3 [e30L

 J0 8ieys Kyoeden

uopund

sjoafoid weysAs yinos - uojyduasag

169'16T'ke § | | Zes'ser'sy § 000'Z4L'96 § 00004679  § 000°€E0} $ 000GIENL  § spoaloid WaysAg yinos [e3oL
sieak gl-| 182'8.6') %EY0E a3l %00°00} %00'0 %000 000'008'9 wsloid suoppeg  Z0-88
auogyoeg
sieak 0z-1) 8ve'1zs %EF 08 asL %0000} %00°0 %000 000'ELL' sz1sdn adid (Py MsuABog S pue py PUBIPSY UBBMBG) PY 1DIUBH § 18-
sieak 0g-11 vL1'6%C %EY 08 sl %0000 %000 %00°0 000'g8L azsdn adigi Aadon s 68-Q
sieak 0z-11 259'LLL %EF 08 asl %0000 %00°0 %00°0 000'%95 azsdn adid 10 2oueT § 58-a
sieah 0z-}1 000'€0T %€ 08 asl %0000} %000 %00°0 000'299 azsd) edid )0 sueg g #8-a
sieak 0g-4l 7e64TL %EY 08 asL %0000 %000 %00°0 000'6Lb azsdnadigJguosers 8.0
sJeah 0z-1 L 180'622 %E708 asL %0000 %00°0 %000 000'¢82 peoy puepsy  78-Q
siesh 0g-1 L L1908 %E7 08 QgL %0000 %000 %000 000'800'} (1) peay uosnBiag 18-0
sieak 0g-4L 609252 %E7'0E a3l %00°00 %000 %000 000'0£8 peoy puepsy  08-Q
sieaf g-| SEY'8YS %E7'08 ael %00°004 %000 %000 000'208'} adid MAN Py PUEPSY S ‘P I00YOS PUBIPRY S 640
sieah 0g-1 L 192851 %E7°08 asl %00°004 %00°0 %000 000'025 UOBEIS A¥d YUBL IDUUBH 'adig MN Py DUBH 8/
sieah 0z-41 156'902 %EF 08 asl %0000} %00°0 %000 000'088 szisd adid py uosnbiag g 1-Q
sJeah 0z L 989'62C %€y 08 a3l %00°004 %00°0 %00°0 000's€Z szsdn add py Yewey s 940
sJeah 0Z-1 L 192911 %E7'08 asl %00°004 %00°0 %00°0 000'Z8¢ azsdn add any aIsel s 60
sJ29h 0z} L SE7'PL9 %E7°08 asl %0000} %0070 %000 000'012'2 azsdn adid py yea;0ieneag S Py PUEIBTS  4-C
sieaf 0z L 969'85¢ %€y 0E asL %00°004 %0070 %000 000058 azsdn adid pY NG S 101818 €T
sieak g|-G 9z8'vel %EH08 asl %0005 %0005 %000 000'988 azsdn adid py Jawwe 2a
sseak 0z-1 L 1BE'8 L %E7'08 asL %00°05 %0005 %000 000'8L2 azsdn) adid 10 suiopald § 10 sWoymeH § 14-Q
sieaf 0L SEV'00L %EY0E asl %0000} %000 %000 000°0€€ azsdn edidj0 puodwes s 00
s1eaf 0g- ) 226'90L %€y 0E azL %00°004 %000 %000 000'05€ azsdn adidio MaInJeaD S 690
sueah 0z L 0/8'20L %E7'08 asl %00°0§ %00'05 %00°0 000'928 azisdn adlg 4Q 984UBBRI S 10 0Y ASSONS  89-Q
sieak o}-G 8YECS %EY 08 asl %0005 %0005 %000 000'%¥E azisdn adig U3sa10 [BND § 18-0
sieaf 011 048'162 %EY 08 azl %00°004 %000 %000 000656 Py LUBH -Yganieneag  9g-Q
sieak 0z-1 1 0€L'89 %EH0E asL %00°001 %00°0 %00°0 000'9€S azsdn adid 10 [Esk1 ‘Aem uaibpoam §9-0
S1E3R 0Z-1 ) B09'641 %EF0E asl %00°00} %000 %000 000'€6€ azisdn edid u7 8|ppes § $9-0
sieak G-| 182'4L %E0E asl %00°05 %00'05 %00°0 000'418 azsdn adid u7 Auueq €90
sieak G- 928'26L %E7'08 asl %00°004 %000 %000 000'508'2 UOIES A\Md HUBL IUUSH ladid MBN Py llUBH 280
sieak LG 000'8€0' %EV0E agl %000 %000 %0000} 000'€€0'} uogoauUeY dooT] Ysa.oIanesg lg-a
sieak g-| 725'e8) %EY 0L aslL %0008 %0008 %00'0 000'902'L azisdn adid Py SNAWAIO S ‘PriSUBYY S 090
sieak 0z-LL 269'c82 %€y 08 asL %00°004 %00°0 %00°0 000286 azsdn adid py %R0 § 860
sieak pL-g 00061 %EF 08 aslL %00°0§ %0008 %000 000'88Z'} azsdn adigiSIPBH S Py uosnBis4 S 85-Q
sieak gL-g 000'012 %EY0S asl %00°05 %0005 %000 000'08€'} ezsdn adid Jg %8810 QUL 'PY J8POTS /GO
sieaf -1 0826 %EY 08 azl %0008 %0005 %000 000'2%€ peoy suejsidep § 86-d
sieak g-| 969616 %EY 08 asL %0000} %00°0 %00°0 000740 uogRIS Atd MaN ‘adig maN py suejiden § 560
sieak 0z-L ) ey %EH0E asl %0000k %00°0 %00°0 000'ErL'y azisdn adig py uosnbiag § 'py JaMEM S Py 4efRYL S ¥6-a
s1eak 0Z7-1) 16€'82E %EY'0E asl %0000} %00°0 %000 000'6£0°} adid MaN 40 [BeUal AUBL S 'PY PUTYIONS €6
sieak 0z-}1 595'09 %€y 08 asL %00°004 %00'0 %000 000'684 azsdn adigiowes jo ynos py 8iseID § 260
s1eak 0z-L 1 969'8LL $ %ER'0E asl %0000 %000 %000 000°06¢ $ azisdn adid py uBw)g § 16-0
| (fapoedeg ainyna) JualaAoidu| juawaaoidu| fyjoedey

slepdn ebleyn juswdojansg walshs

I LYM J3AIE SYWVAHOVTO




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 16

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES

CALCULATION

Dividing the sum of the net functional cost bases identified in Tables 11 and 12 by the future
available capacity identified in Tables 5, 7 and 9 results in the calculated SDC. The charges are
calculated both on a per MCE and a per EHU basis. Tables 15 and 16 provide the calculation of the
charges.

Table 15. SDC Calculation - MCE Basis

Pt Supply/ =
SDC - MCE Basis Treatment Pumping Storage

Net reimbursement cost basis $§ 4,757,352 § 2,029,808 $ 6,659,659 $ 14,848,018 $ 28,294,837
Allocable future capacity - MCEs 7,097 8,538 10,240 7,097

Reimbursement fee per MCE $ 670 $ 238 § 650 $ 2,002 § 3,650
Netimprovement cost basis $ 147233 § 1,291,655 $ 655,183 § 36,323,559 § 38,417,631
Allocable future capacity - MCEs 7,097 8,538 10,240 7,097

Improvement fee per MCE $ 20§ 151 § 64 $ 5118 § 5,354

System Development Charge (per MCE) $ 691 $ 389 $ 714 $ 7210 $ 9,004

Table 16. SDC Calculation - EHU Basis

Supply :

| SDC - EHU Basis Traafrstt Pumping Storage
Net reimbursement cost basis $ 4757352 $ 2029808 $ 6,669,659 $ 14,848,018 $ 28,204,837
Allocable future capacity - EHUs 17,584 21,154 25,370 17,584

Reimbursement fee per MCE $ 211§ 9% $ 263 § 844 $ 1,473
Netimprovement cost basis $ 147,233 $ 1,291,655 $ 655,183 $ 36,323,559 §$ 38,417,631
Allocable future capacity - EHUs 17,584 21,154 25,370 17,584

Improvement fee per MCE $ 8 $ 61 $ 26 $ 2,066 $ 2,161

System Development Charge (per EHU) ey I F v 2,910

As discussed in the Customer Base & Capacity Section of this report, either the MCE or EHU bases
are appropriate. The MCE approach is less burdensome to administer, because it is based on the
physical characteristics of the connection. Utilities commonly utilize either the MCE or EHU
approach for SDC fee basis. To equitably recover costs from peak based and large average
consumption based future customers, utilities may choose to impose the greater of the two bases for
meters 1.5-inches and above. Customers of that size often impact the system more through their total
demand, represented by the EHU approach, than by their peaking behavior.

SCHEDULE OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES

In order to impose water SDCs on an individual developing property, the number of MCEs is
determined by the size of the property’s water meter. The MCE calculation used is based on
American Water Works Association (AWWA) flow factors, proportionate to a 3/4-inch safe
operating flow capacity, as shown in Table 17 where one MCE is a 3/4-inch by 3/4-inch meter.

“» FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 17

Table 17.  Water SDC Schedule (MCE Basis)
MCE Factor

Meter (304" Equiv) SDC

34" 1.00 $ 9,004
1" 1.67 15,007
112" 3.33 30,014
2" 5.33 48,023
3 10.67 96,046
4" 16.67 150,072
6" 33.33 300,144
8" 53.33 480,231
10" 76.67 690,332
12" 112.50 1,012,986
18" 215.12 1,936,997

For new customers connecting to the system, the MCE basis serves as a multiplier for any required
capacity greater than that provided by a 3/4-inch meter. Under the EHU basis for services of 1.5-inch
or greater, the charge could be calculated based on the number of EHUs, defined as 202 gpd per
EHU, multiplied by $3,634 (see Table 16).

COMPARISONS AND RECOMMENDATION

Table 18 shows how CRW’s existing and proposed 3/4-inch by 3/4-inch water SDCs compare with
SDCs adopted by other water utilities in the region. It should be noted, the comparisons include local
and regional charges. Specifically, the cities of West Linn and Oregon City include South Fork Water
Board’s SDC. Based on these comparisons, the characteristics of the District, and this report’s
resulting calculations for both the MCE and EHU basis for SDCs, it is recommended that the MCE
methodology be adopted for all meter sizes as presented in Table 17.

Table 18.  Regional Comparisons

System Development Charges 3/4"

City of West Linn - e g i o it e o S Lo e e e o W R e SOk » goc i pords| 5 18,7C0
Sunrise Water Authority |, 14579
City of Oregon City IR 5106541
Oak Lodge Water Services NN 5 (0,508
CRW Proposed | 5 : - z $9,004
City of Lake Oswego N 55,384
City of Gladsone I NEEG——EE 7047
CRW Existing | : : , $5514
City of Gresham [N EEG—G—N 4537
South Fork Water Board — $3,736
City of Milwaulic NN $204

$- $2000  $4000  $6000  §8000 $10000 $12000 $14000 §16000 $18000 20,000

%> FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER February 2021
System Development Charge Update page 18

SDC IMPLEMENTATION

The SDCs calculated in this report represent our opinion of the maximum water SDCs that CRW can
legally charge. CRW is under no legal obligation to impose the full, calculated SDC. However, CRW
should be aware that any discounting or phase-in period that reduces SDC revenue will, other things
being equal, increase the funding requirement from other resources.

CREDITS

A credit is a reduction in the amount of the SDC for a specific development. ORS 223.304 requires
that SDC credits be issued for the construction of a qualified public improvement which is: required
as a condition of development approval; identified in CRW’s adopted SDC project list; and either
“not located on or contiguous to property that is the subject of development approval,” or located “on
or contiguous to such property and is required to be built larger or with greater capacity than is
necessary for the particular development project . . .”

Additionally, a credit must be granted “only for the cost of that portion of an improvement which
exceeds the minimum standard facility size or capacity needed to serve” the particular project up to
the amount of the improvement fee. For multi-phase projects, any “excess credit may be applied
against SDCs that accrue in subsequent phases of the original development project.”

ORS 223.304 authorizes agencies to grant credits beyond the minimum requirements stated above.

INDEXING

Oregon Jaw (ORS 223.304) also allows for the periodic indexing of SDCs for inflation, as long as the
index used is:
(A) A relevant measurement of the average change in prices or costs over an identified time
period for materials, labor, real property or a combination of these;

(B) Published by a recognized organization or agency that produces the index or data source
for reasons that are independent of the system development charge methodology; and

(C) Incorporated as part of the established methodology or identified and adopted in a
separate ordinance, resolution or order.

It is recommended that CRW index its charges to the Engineering News Record Construction Cost
Index for the City of Seattle and adjust its charges annually. There is no comparabie Oregon-specific
index.

¥ FCS GROUP



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 3

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SUBJECT Consider Second Reading by Title Only of Otdinance 03-2021 System
Development Charges Fee Schedule and Adoption
DRAFT MOTION Move the CRW Board Approve Carol Bryck, CFO to Conduct the Second

Reading by title only of Ordinance 03-2021, System Development Chasges
rates and adopt.

EFFECTIVE DATE None

PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, CFO

PERSON

BOARD ACTION Consider Second Reading of the System Development Chatges Rates

REQUESTED Ordinance 03-2021

DocumMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance 03-2021 — Updating System Development Charges

ATTACHED (SDCs) rates and Declaring an Effective Date
Tixhibit B — SDC Rate Table
Exhibit C — SDC Rate Regional Comparisons

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND Clackainas River Water System Development Chatge methodology was
updated via Ordinance 02-2021 effective July 10, 2021. Futare charges
will be updated annually effective July 1 of cach fiscal year and indexed by
the Engincering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI) for
Seattle, Washington.
SDC qualifying projects can be found in the CRW Water System Master
Plan, the Water T'reatment Plant Facilities plan and can be added to or
amended by action of the Board to include additional projecis.

ANALYSIS This Ordinance presents the Water System Development Charges as

June 10, 2021

calculated based on the 2019 Water System Master plan as adopted by the
Boatd of Commissioners using the meter capacity equivalents (MCE)
approach. This methodology is a common approach in the region.

Agenda Ifer 3 Page 1of 1




EXHIBIT A

ORDINANCE 03-2021

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
ESTABLISHING SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES (SDCs) RATES.

WHEREAS, the Clackamas River Water ("CRW") is a municipal domestic water district
organized under ORS Chapter 264 which, among other powers, authorizes CRW to do
all acts which may be requisite, necessary or convenient in carrying out the objects of
the district or exercising the powers conferred upon it by ORS Chapter 264; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River Water ("CRW") finds that
Ordinance No. 02-2021 of CRW establishes a System Development Charge ("SDC")
methodology for the water system pursuant to ORS 223.297 through 223.314; and

WHEREAS, the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners Board establishes a
reimbursement fee for existing and available capacity of CRW's facilities and an
improvement fee for the costs necessary to expand the system to accommodate future
growth; and

WHEREAS, system development charges shall be adjusted on July 1%t of each year,
based on the changes in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI) for
Seattle, Washington. The Seattle area CCI at December, as divided by the Seattle area
CCI for December 2021; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS, AS FOLLOWS:

System development charges methodology was established on Ordinance 02-
2021 and all provisions remain in force if not modified by amendments outlined
as follows:

A. System development charges shall be adjusted on July 15t of each year,
based on the changes in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost
Index (CCI) for Seattle, Washington. The Seattle area CCI at December, as
divided by the Seattle area CCI for December 2021.

B. The SDC is calculated for a full 3/4-inch meter. The SDC for meters larger
than the full 3/4 inch, the calculation will use weighting factors adopted by
the American Water Works Association.

C. When anticipated flow information is not readily available from a new
customer, average daily flows and peak day water usage may be
estimated by CRW staff. In making such an estimate, CRW Staff may use
flow data from existing customers with the same meter size and/or water

System Development Charges (SDC) Rates Ordinance Page 1 of 2



EXHIBIT A

use characteristics. The decision to make these estimates and the result
will be at the sole discretion of CRW.

D. Wavier of SDC, is amended as follows:
The General Manager has the ability to waive the SDC if it is
determined that it is in the best interest of CRW to do so.

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be not sooner than on the 30t day following
adoption after a second reading of such Ordinance as provided by law.

THIS ORDINANCE FIRST INTRODUCED AND READ BY TITLE ONLY AT A REGULAR
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON THE 13™ DAY OF MAY 2021 AND
READ BY TITLE ONLY FOR A SECOND TIME AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS ON THE 10™ DAY OF JUNE 2021 AND ADOPTED.

Sheryl French, President Naomi Angier, Secretary
Clackamas River Water Clackamas River Water

System Development Charges (SDC) Rates Ordinance Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B
SDC Rate Table

MCE Total SDC

Meter Size  Factor SDC Reimbursement SDC Improvement  Charges
Full 3/4" 1 S 3,650 § 5354 S 9,004
1" 1.67 6,084 8,923 15,007
1.5" 3.33 12,168 17,846 30,014
2" 533 19,469 28,554 48,023
3" 10.67 38,938 57,108 96,046
4" 16.67 60,841 89,231 150,072
6" 33.33 121,681 178,463 300,144
8" 53.33 194,690 285,540 480,230
0" 76.67 279,867 410,464 690,331
iz2" 112.5 410,675 602,312 1,012,987

18" 215.12 785,278 1,151,719 1,936,997



} 28

v96'71$
NIy BECTY

1

8¢'8%
6LG'VLS obamsQ
osLUNg  $00'6$ MMD  oeT

88v'L$ G06'9% 08t°9$ LE8'YS
suolspe|s AU uobaig sbpoyeQ Weysslo

1

vZs'es 001'Z$
SHO4 YInog  anjnemiiiy

_

sabieys AJ10

0} uoiippe ul pieog I8jepp %404 Yinog o0} Hds Jo JuawAhed aiinbai A319 uobalQ pue uui }Sap .
sebaeyn 0qs 191epn s1ouysig Bunloqybiap jo uosiiedwon

-$

000'2$

000'7$

000'9%

000°8$

000°0L$

000218

000'71L$

0009}$

J Hqiyx3




Agenda Item -4
CILLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Resolution No. 05-2021 Approve Utility Billing Bad Debt Write-off for
FY 2020-21, Uncollectible Water Bills
DRrarFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution No. 05-2021 Bad Debt Write-off for
'Y 2020-21, Uncoliected Water Bills.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 30, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consider Resolution No. 05-2021 to write off uncollectible bad debt on utility
REQUESTED billing (UB) accounts.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit T - Resolution No. 05-2021
ATTACHED Exhibit 2 - Bad Debt listing — UB Account Browse
Exhibit 3 - Graph of I'Y 2020-21 Bad Debt Write Offs
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW Board Policies - Section 3.9 Audit

At the end of each fiscal year, in preparation for the annual audit, staff
has the opportunity to recognize those receivables that are “doubtful”
and should be removed from the balance sheet.

The process for UB accounts with bad debts:

e Account is closed, send final hill.

* During COVID we delayed intent to collect letters allowing
closed accounts a greater amount of time to pay. The
account holders continued to receive statement copies.
When we determined that we were ready to send accounts
to our collection company we initiated intent to collect
lettexrs. This lets the customer know their account will be
turned over to a collection company if the bill remains
unpaid. All bills returned by the post office as
undeliverable are turned over to the collection company at
that time,

¢ Based on the due date in the intent to collect letter, the account is

turned over to the collection company including all pertinent
information on the customer in the CRW files. If CRW receives
additional information it is forwarded to the collection company.

June 10. 2021 Agendg e 4 Page 1 of 2



Jine 10. 2027

e CRW has used Professional Credit Services for collections on bad
debt accounts since October 1, 2012.

e By law, CRW 1s not allowed to tutn over or pursue bankruptey
accounts outside of the formal bankruptey process. Thete are fout
(4) accounts in bankruptey for bad debt write-off for FY 2020-21.

Bad debts are divided into three types or groups: bankrupt,
commercial /industrial and residential.

Commercial are business accounts, while residential accounts are
homeowner, renter or landlord accounts. CRW does not putsue
collection on an old bill from a new owner, landlord ot renter even if the
water service was shut off for non-payment. The water usage follows the
former owner of tenant,

This year, staff is recommending $14,054.74 of write offs on 67 utility
billing accounts. CRW customer accounting staff works diligently to
pursue collection on outstanding utility accounts. All accounts greater
than $10 have been turned over to collections.

The percent of bad debts for write off is just over .1% of total retail water
sales of $12,501,108 for the period May 2020 through April 2021.

For 2020 bad debt {accounts closed prior to or on 06/30/2020):
*  Banktuptey — 4 accounts for § 979.63
e Commercial/industrial — 4 accounts for § 2,217.77
¢ Residentizl — 59 accounts for $10,857.34

The 10-year average annual write off amount is $11,261 (2011-2020).
This year the write off is §2,793 over the 10-year average.

The lowest annual write off was in 2014 for approximately $7,097. 'The
highest amount in the last 10 years was 2017, for approximately $17,088.
The second highest 1s FY2020, for approximately $14,055 and thitd
highest was 2016 for approximately $13,159.

Collection on CRW utility billing accounts remains high through repeated
notices requesting payment, direct phone calls, and tracking customers
within district boundaries. Though June 1, 2021 we have collected from
Professional Credit Services $1,248 on prior bad debt write-off accounts.
Professional Credit Services will continue to putsue collections on behalf
of CRW even though accounts have been written off in the past.

Information provided by Kati Saindon, Jennifer Ross, and Anna Pina
Customer Service Specialists.

Agenda Iterm 4 Page 2 of 2



Exhibit A

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

RESOLUTION No. 05-2021

BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF FOR FY 2020-2021
UNCOLLECTABLE WATER BILLS

WHEREAS, each year those water customer final billings, for which collection
efforts have been unsuccessful, are identified and prepared for Board
consideration (see attached list); and,

WHEREAS, it is essential for audit purposes to clear old accounts;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Clackamas River Water Board of
Commissioners to write-off an amount not to exceed $14,054.74 for fiscal year
2020-21 as bad debts.

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners this 10th day
of June 2021.

Sheryl French, Board President Naomi Angier, Board Secretary

YAAD-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas -
Permanent\Board Packef\2021 Board Meeting Sununaries\CRW Reg Board Mtng 2021-06-100AG - 4 05-
2021 RES Bad Debt Write-off FY 2020-21 Uncoliectable Water Bills - Ex A.doc



Utility Billing - Bad Debt listing for FY 2020 - write off FY 2021

Account # Account Type

015954 o Fire

Commercial

Commercna[

ACCOU!’It
Status

Bankrupt |1
Bankrupt

Bankrupt

009080-04

_{Commercial |

Collections '

026354-03

QU790 R

Commercial

Collections ﬁﬁﬁ.,[,ﬁfﬁ"jlg

Prime Location Address

12300SE &NDAVE |

12300 SE 82ND AVE

11211 e 82ND AVE RN SO

ACommercialCo
mmercialount
balanCommerci

ale due)
$188.15|

~ $370.75
______ $94.27

Exhlblt B
Closed
Date

'5/15/2020 |
_5/15/2020 _
2/20/2020 -

Commermal Total (Bankrupt) "

$653.17

14811 SE WEBSTER RD

8416 SE SUNNYSIDERD
13011 SE 84TH AVE
8416 S

$422.32|

. $292.59]

 6/25/2020
10/15/2019

$1,090.38

6/22/2020

$412.48

Commercial Total;

2,217.77

10/15/2019

,02424 1 OSA ot e o

Collections

028133-07 Residential North
030297-06 __|Residential North

e S

|7914 SESUNNYSIDEDR

7808 SE SOUTHGATE ST

7626 SECLACKAMASRD |

|Collections
Collections

028128-09

" 9351 SE STANLEY AVE

|6425 SEPINE CREEKWAY |

02911716 | Residential North _|Bankrupt 15962 SE KRISTIN CT_ . $326.46| 12/10/2019
..|_._Residential North Total (Bankrupt)l — ~ $326.46|
020757-07 Residential | North  |Closed N 8723 SE JOTHAVE %$137.19) 4/7/2020
009952-06 |Residential North  |14489 SE CREEKSIDE DR $88.00] 3/4/2020
012627-10 Residential North _|Collections |oB0O3 SE LAMPHIER ST  $115.60] 2/3/2020 7
014533-04  {Residential North |Collections {7511 SE LAMPHIER ST $173.58] 1/30/2020 "
017124 13 Rﬂqggjentzal,_Nosth _|{Collections 15171 SE 915T AVE B $194.62| '2/13/2020"“___
018756-10 Residential North Collectlons {15449 SE JOHNSONWRD ) _6133.08| 2/29/2020
019508-03 _|Residentiai North CoHectlons _ |7242sE LAMPHIERST _§139.01 ,_mgggygggg )
00676( Residentiai North Coliectlon_s o 8850 SE TOLBERT st $135.54| 12/25/2019
006823-16 |Residential North iCollections 9145 S”E TOLB!;BT ST#3 $90.35| 1/22/2020
007331-09 Residential North | Collections 116333 SE ECHO WAY $223.84| 12/ 1/2019
008248-10 Residential North [Collections ~ |15645 SE RAINIER AVE . $425.93] 12/25/2019
01021i-06  |Residential North | Collections 15900 SE ALDERCRESTRD  $129.86] 12/2/2019
019504 08  |Residential North |Collections ~ |10019 SE BRANDEISSY | 419847 12/13/2019 )
02556503 |Residential North _|Collections  [15750 SEJOHNSONRD | = " 14056 3/20/2020
02571315 _ |Residential North |Collections 17270 SE_82NDDR | 4133.22| 12/6/2019
028368-09 Residential North |Collections  |7918 SE JOHNSON CREEK BLVD $333.85| 12/6/2019
030581-10 Residential North | Collections 8570 SE  58TH AVE 1 $326.74| 6/24/2020
007999-06 |Residential North |Collections ~ |6384 SE WILDLIFE ESTATESDR _$55.19| 6/25/2020
015171-04 Res.denna| North |Collections  |8502 SE HINKLEY AVE _ $227.61| 10/9/2019

9/9/2019

2/24/2020

011965-02

01291909

015140-11 | Residential North

Collections

8527 SE HINKLEY AVE

Resndenhal North"

Collections

022712-06

01072805  |Residential North

|Residential North

Collections

Collections

02046904

Re51dent|a! North

|Coltections ___[€
|9614 SE 76TH AVE

020659-17 tial North

02258604

Ressdential North_:"}

031259-08 Residential North Coi!ectlons
009366- 06 _ {Residential North Co!!ectlons
017332-09_ Resuientlal North'

Co!Eectlons

Colfections

15181 SE 91ST AVE

7470 SE CARLA CT

6796 SE CLACKAMAS RD

Residential North |Collections  |7805 SE MCBRIDE ST )  $224.26| 7/31/2019
_|Residential North _ | Collecti |BALLSEHINKLEYAVE _ $14.74] 11/18/2019
_|Residential North Collect] 16718 SE BLOSSOM AVE e 8016.29| 73172019

Residential North _|Collections __ |11041 SE_78THCT $04.30| 8/30/2019

Residential North | Collections 6707 SE HALE ST $115.04 7/8/2019

$496.24|

8/8/2019

15055 SE BEVINGTON AVE

4500 SE ALDERCREST RD_

oot s eiomabo T
|7318 SE JACK RD

 $74.87| 8/1/2019
$21.51] 7/12/2019
$17.00]  1/6/2020
__$79.95| 2/13/2020 _
 $52.94] 12/25/2019

| 8/13/2019

10/25/2019




031644-05

026990 02

03100409 |Residential Sout
Residential South

028662-06 |Residential South

‘ReSIdentlal South‘:_“”
Remdent;al South.

[19535 S FISCHERS MILLRD

Collections

Collections

Collections

'Collectlons

10889 S BEUTEL RD

T S — R
Residential North Total|

03103610
005083-02

Res_gdent!al Southﬂ -

Collections

| Residential South
Resrdentsa] South

019574-05
02

Residential South

Collections
Collectlons )
Col]ectlons

Residential South

Coliectiogs o

18100 S ELIDA RD

|16799 5 REDLAND RD __ —

20442 SDRIFTWOODDR |

8| 11/1/2019 |

 $753.60|

..5/1/2020

2/3/2020

$195.57
$384.91

_12/6/2019
10/24/2019

17135 S SEAL CT

|22100A S KAMRATH RD

20248 S DANNY CT

Residential Southl )

030591-02

003325-11

00130107 |F
| Residential South

Residential South“;:

Res:dentlaE South

Collections

Collections _ RORD o

Coi!ectsons

Colfections

Collections

Régi'dentiéi:_South

|Collections

19657 S MCCORD RD

114344 SHOLLYCRESTIN |

 $108.48

9/16/2019

$179.91

8/6/2019

$319.02

8/28/2019

8/42019

~ $165.69

'$260.08

$112.75

11/1/2019

$169.74

9/8/2019

$86.79

12/25/2019

$92.21

9/30/2019

Resxdentlal ‘South Total

 $4,246.08

Grand Total

$14 054.74



0Z0Z= 6I0C= 8T0Z= [LTI0Z= 9T0Z= ST0Z= $I0Z= €I0Z= ZIDE= TIOT =

0€0'8s

BSTETS

8L1°TTS

SSOPTS

880°2TS

J Hqiyx3 0¢0¢ - TT0C HO-31M 1930 peg

060°TTS

mwﬂmm

0s

000TS

0007S

000°9S

000°8$

000'0TS

000ZTS

000%TS

000°9TS

00081S



Agenda Item — 5

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Resolution No. 06-2021 Establishing Wholesale Water Rates Charged to
Sunrise Water Authority
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution No. 06-2021 establishing wholesale water rates ‘
chatged to Sunrise Water Authority effective July 1, 2021.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 1, 2020
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consider Resolution No. 06-2021, establishing wholesale water rates charged
REQUESTED to Sunrise Water Authority
DOCUMENTS Hxhibit 1 Resolution No. 06-2021
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW’s wholesale water supply agreement is with North Clackamas

Jmne 10. 2027

County Water Commission (NCCWC). NCCWC assigned it rights and
obligation to Sunrise Water Authority (SWA). The agreement provides
for annual adjustments to wholesale rates.

A rate study was completed FY 2012-13 for the wholesale water
customers. Future rate changes will be based on the CPI-U for the
previous twelve month calendat year.

July 1, 2020 the wholesale water rates for SWA are:

For water delivered at Mather Road/152™ £0.73621
For water delivered at Otty Road* TBD
July 1, 2021 the new wholesale water rates for SWA will be:
For water delivered at Mather Road/152™ $0.74535
For water delivered at Otty Road* TBD

*Otty Road is for emergency use only. The rate will be determined if
used.

The effective date for these rates is July 1, 2021. Annual rate increases
will be calculated and take effect at the beginning of each fiscal year, July
1, for water putchases on or after that date.

Agenda Item 5 Page 1 of 1



Exhibit A

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION No. 06-2021

Establishing Wholesale Water Rates Charged to Sunrise Water
Authority

WHEREAS, Clackamas River Water (CRW) has entered into a water supply
agreement with the North Clackamas County Water Commission; and

WHEREAS, the North Clackamas County Water Commission assigned its rights
and obligations under that agreement to the Sunrise Water Authority; and

WHEREAS, the agreement provides that CRW is to adopt rates each year and,

WHEREAS, CRW has conducted a rate study to evaluate wholesale water rates
during fiscal year 2012-13,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER THAT:

Section 1:  The following rates are per CCF and shall apply for water
purchased

Section 2:  Beginning July 1, 2021, the Sunrise Water Authority rates shall be:

For water delivered at Mather Road/152 $0.74535
For water delivered at Otty Road TBD

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners this 10th day of
June 2021.

Sheryl French, Board President

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary

YAAD-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\202 1 Board Meeting Summaries\CRW Reg Board Ming 202]1-06-100AG - 5 06-2021 RES Wholesale Water
Rates for SWA Ex A.doc



Agenda Item — 6
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Resolution 07-2021 Dissolve the Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund and CIP
Bond Construction Fund
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution 07-2021 dissolving the Revenue Bond
Proceeds IFund and the CIP Bond Construction Fund and transferring the
temaining assets to the Capital Reserve Fund in Fiscal Year 2021.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 10, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, Chief Financial Officer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approval of Resolution 07-2021 dissolving the Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund
REQUESTED and the CIP Bond Construction Fund in fiscal year 2020-2021.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit 1 - Resolution 07-2021
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Local Budget Law, Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 294.305 to 294.565,
provides the basis of budgeting. Local Budget Law allows the District to
declare a fund unnecessary and abolish during the fiscal year by
Resolution.
The Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund and the CIP Bond Construction Fund
have served their purpose of tracking the bond proceeds and the
construction costs for the Backbone projects funded primarily with the
Sertes 2016 bonds.
These funds are unnecessaty going forward and the remaining funds can
be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund for other capital spending,
STAFF Staff recommends approval of the Resolution to abolish both funds and
RECOMMENDATION transfer the remaining balances to the Capital Resetve Fund.

June 10, 2021 Agenda Itens 6 Page 7 of 1



Exhibit A

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

RESOLUTION No. 07-2021

DISSOLVE THE REVENUE BOND PROCEEDS FUND AND CIP BOND
CONSTRUCTION FFUND

WHEREAS, Clackamas River Water established a Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund
for tracking of funds from the Series 2016 Revenue Bonds and the CIP Bond
Construction Fund for tracking the spending of bond proceeds for capital projects: and

WHEREAS, ORS 294,353 allows for funds to be declared unnecessary and
abolished during the fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined the Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund and the
CIP Bond Construction Fund should be abolished and theie is an approximate residual
fund balance in the Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund of $472,000 (estimated in cash), and in
the CIP Bond Construction Fund of $375,000 (estimated in cash);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Clackamas River Water Board
of Commissioners, pursuant to ORS 294.353, the fund balance, which includes all assets
and equity, be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund and the Revenue Bond Proceeds
Fund and the CIP Bond Construction Fund be eliminated effective fiscal year 2020-2021.

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners this 10th day
of June 2021.

Sheryl French, Board President

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary



CILLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item —7

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SUBJECT Considet Apptoval of Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with
Clackamas County For Corrections Work Crew Support
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the Amendment to the Intetgovernmental Agreement with
Clackamas County for Clackamas County Corrections Work Crew Support

EFFECTIVE DATE June 10, 2021

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgetken, General Manager

PERSON

BOARD ACTION The Board is requested to authorize the Amendment to the Intergovernmental

REQUESTED Agreement (IGA)

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A~ IGA for Clackamas County Corrections Work Crew Support

ATTACHED Exhibit B- Amendment 2021 to IGA for Correction Work Crew Support

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND The Clackamas County Community Cotrections Department provides work
crew support through IGAs with neighboring public agencies. Clackamas River
Water (CRW) has utilized this program provided by the County for a number of
yeats. The county corrections work crews provide suppoit for landscaping, trash
and graffiti removal for CRW. Having this IGA with the County has been of
benefit to CRW and staff 1s recommending that we continue to have this
agreement in place.
The amendment will allow for the extension of the agreement for one year.
This amendment will be the second of three possible extensions allowed under
the original agreement.
Both the CRW Local Contract Revue Board Rules (LCRB) and State Statute
encourage the government entities to enter into agreements which provide both
parties with mutual benefit.

STAFFE Staff recommends approval and signature of the amendment to the IGA as

RECOMMENDATION  presented.

June 10, 20271

Agenda Irem 7 Page 1 of 7




Exhibit A

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BETWEEN CLACKAMAS COUNTY T '
CRW Contract #
AND CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE

TER [ 00200-07-2019

THIS AGREEMENT ({this "Agreement”} is entered intc and between Clackamas
County ("County™), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, by and through the
Community Corrections Department, and Clackamas River Waler ("Agency™), an Oregon
municipal corporation, collectively referred to as the “Parties” and each a “Parly."

RECITALS

Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 180,010 confers authority upon local
governments to enter into agreements for the performance of any and all functions and
activities that a parly to the agreement, ifs officers or agencles have authority to perform.

In consideration of the mutual promises set forth below and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties

hereby agree as follows:

TERMS

1. Term. This Agreement shall be effective upon execution, and shall expire upon the
completion of each and every obligation of the Partles set forth herein, or June 30,
2020, but may be renewed for three (3) additional one (1) year agreements upon
writtent approval by both parties.

2. Rlights and Obligations of the County.
A, The COUNTY agrees to:

I

il.

iii.

Provide a Work Crew Supervisor to supervise the Work Crews and perform work.
when safety and work flow allow,

Provide a minimum of four (4) clients to perform general labor on a mutually
agreed-upon schedule. Wark crews will take (2) 15 minute breaks (non-billable)
and (1) 30 minute lunch (non-biilable) per County Policy, Total labor hours
including mobilization will be a minimum of twenty- four (24) per work day.
Provide all basic tools to perform assigned scope of work. Basic fools include:
{Axes, Brooms, Chainsaws, Garden Rakes, Hand Saws, Hoes, Lawn Mowers,
Leaf Blowers, Litter Pickers, Loppers, Machetes, Mattocks, Pitchforks, Pruning
Shears, Shovels, String Trimmers, and Wheel Barrows.) If special tools are
necessary, they shall be provided by the Agency.

B. For Graffiti removal services GOUNTY agrees to:

h
ii.

Til,

Provide a Work Crew Supervisar to supervise the Work Crew and perform work
when safely and work flow allow;
Provide a minimum of two (2) clients to perform labor on mutually agreed

schedule;

Provide all necessary {ools to perform scope of work; including pressure washer,
buckets, brushes, and AGENCY approved graffiti removal chemicals when
necessary. (SDS avallable),

Remedy requested work within ten (10) days of notification per code;

Take before and after photos for documentation and furnish to AGENCY upon

completion;




vi, Proactively notify AGENCY of any painted graffiti and address with consent from
AGENCY.

3. Rights and Obligations of the AGENCY,
A. The AGENCY agrees to;

B.

i. ldentify Work Crew projects, such as litter patrol, trail, and landscape
maintenance in Clackamas County,

Il. Schedule Work Crew projects on a mutually agreed-upon schedule;
communicating scope of work and tool requirements to COUNTY.

For Graffiti removal seivices AGENCY agrees to;

i, Promptly notify COUNTY of palnted graffiti once it has been determined that
COUNTY is going to be contracted for grafliti removal;

ii. Provide COUNTY with a detailed description of the location and nature of the
graffiti to be removed and ensure access for removal;

fi. When paint over is the identified best remedy, AGENCY will provide paint to
COUNTY for an accurate color match;

iv. AGENCY will not Contract COUNTY in instances where ladders or man lifts are
required or work has extreme grade or other inherent dangers beyond
COUNTY's mutually understood capabilities.

4. Compensation.

A

B.

The Agency agrees to pay $425 per crew per day for the services outlined in

Saction II. A.

For Graffiti removal services outlined in section )1.B above. Agency agrees to pay

$200 per event for maximum of nine (9) hours of labor. Events requiring more than

nine {8) hours will be charged a rate of $400 per event.

Payments shall be made on the basis of requests for payment submitted as follows:

I, COUNTY wili bill the Agency within the first week following the last working day
of each calendar month in which work is performed,

ii. The Agency agrees fo pay COUNTY within 30 days of the receipt of the
COUNTY'S invoice.

5. Representations and Warranties.

A,

C.

Agency Representations and Warranties: Agency represents and warrants to
County that Agency has the power and authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement, and this Agreement, when executed and delivered, shall be a valid and
binding obligation of Agency enforceable in accordance with its terms.

County Representations and Warranties: County represents and warrants to
Agency has the power and authority to enter into and perform this Agresment, and
this Agreement, when executed and delivered, shall be a valid and hinding
obligation of County enforceable in accordance with Its terms.

The warranties set forth In this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
warranties provided.

6. Termination.




E.

Either the County or the Agency may terminate this Agreement at any time upon
thirty (30) days written notice to the other parly.

. Either the County or the Agency may terminate this Agreemant fn the event of a

breach of the Agreement by the other. Prior to such termination however, the Party
seeking the termination shall give the other Party written notice of the breach and of
the Party's intent to terminate. If the breaching Party has not entirely cured the
breach within fiteen (15) days of deemed or actual recelpt of the notice, then the
Party giving notice may terminate the Agreement at any time thereafter by giving
written notice of termination stating fhe effective date of the termination. If the
default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within such fifteen
(15) day period, this provision shall be complied with if the breaching Party begins
correction of the default within the fifteen (15) day period and thereafter proceeds
with reasonable diligence and in good faith fo effect the remedy as soon as
practicable. The Party giving notice shall not be required to give more than ane (1)
notice for a similar default in any twelve {12) month period.

. The County or the Agency shall not be deemed to have waived any breach of lhis

Agreement by the other Party except by an express walver In writing, An express
written walver as to one breach shall not be deemed a waiver of any other breach
not expressly identified, even though the other breach is of the same nature as that
waived.

The Agency may terminate this Agreement in the event the Agency fails to receive
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the Agency, ih the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretlon, to continue to make payments for performance of this
Agreement, or if federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or
interpreted in such a way that either the Project under this Agreement is prohibited
or the Agency is prohibited from paying for such work from the planned funding
source,

Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations
acoruad 1o the Parties prior to termination

. Indemnification,

A. Subject to the limits of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act or

successor statute, the County agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the
Agency, its officers, elected officlals, agents and employees from and against all
costs, losses, damages, claims or actions and all expenses incidental to the
investigation and defense thereof, except for attorneys’ fees, arising out of or based
upon damages or Injuries to persons or properly caused by the negligent or willful
acts of the County or Its officers, elected officlals, owners, employees, agents, or its
subcontractors or anyone over which the County has a right to control, acting
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Subject to the limits of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act or
successor statute, the Ageney agrees to Indemnify, save harmless and defend the
County, its officers, elected officlals, agents and employees from and against all
costs, losses, damages, clalms or actions and all expenses Incidental to the
investigation and defense thereof, except for attorneys' faes, arising out of or based

3




upon damages or injuries to persons or property caused by the negligent ot wiliful
acts of the Agency or its officers, elected officlals, owners, employees, agents, or lts
subcontractors or anyone over which the Agency has a right to control, acting
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

8. Insurance. The Parties agree to maintain levels of Insurance, or self-insurance,
sufficient to satisfy their obligations under this Agreement and all requirements under

applicable law.

9. Notices; Gontacts. Legal notice provided under this Agreement shall be delivered
personally, by emall or by certified mail to the Individuals identified below. Any
communication or notice so addressed and mailed shall be deemed to he givén upon
receipt. Any communication or notice sent by electronic mail to an address indicated
herein is deemed to be received 2 hours after the time sent (as recorded on the device
from which the sender sent the email), unless the sender receives an automated
message that the email has not been delivered. Any communication or notice by
personal delivery shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. Either Party
may change the Party contact information, or the invoice or payment addresses by
giving prior written notice thereof to the other Paily at its then ourrent notice address.

A. Fred Weinberg, or their designee, will act as liaison for the County.
Contact Information:

Fred Welnberg
Clackamas County
Community Corrections
1024 Main St

Oregon City, OR 97045
(603) 650-8929

Todd Heidgerken, or their designee, will act as liaison for the Agency.
Contact Information:

Todd Heidgerken
Clackamas River Water
PO Box 2439
Clackamas, OR 87015
(503) 722-9220

10. General Provisions,

A. Oregon Law and Forum. This Agreement, and all rights, obligations, and disputes
arising out of it will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Oregon and the ordinances of Clackamas County without giving effect
to the conflict of law provisions thereof. Any claim between County and Agency that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and cenducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Clackamas County for the State of Oregon;
provided, however, if a claim must be brought in a federat forum, then it shall be




brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the United States District Court
for the Distrlct of Oregon. In no event shall this section be construed as a waiver by
the County of any form of defense or immuniiy, whether soverelgn immunity,
governmental immunily, Immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the
Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any clalm or from the
jurlsdiction of any court. Agency, by executlon of this Agreement, hereby consents
to the in person jurisdiction of the courts referenced in this section.

. Compliance with Applicable Law, Both Parties shall comply with all applicable

local, state and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and regulations. All provisions of
law required to be a part of this Agreement, whether listed or otherwlse, are hereby
integrated and adopted herein. Failure to comply with such obligations is a material

breach of this Agreement,

_ Non-Exclusive Rights and Remedies. Except as otherwise expressly provided
herein, the rights and remedies expressly afforded under the provisions of this
Agreement shall not be deemed exclusive, and shall be in addition to and
cumulative with any and all rights and remedies otherwise available at law or in
equity. The exercise by either Party of any one or more of such remedies shall not
preciude the exercise hy it, at the same or different times, of any other remedies for
the same default or breach, or for any other default or breach, by the other Party.

_ Access to Records. Agency shall retain, maintaln, and keep accessibie all records
relevant fo this Agreement ("Records”) for a minimum of six (6) years, following
Agreament termination or full performance or any longer period as may be required
by applicable law, or untl} the conclusion of an audit, controversy or litigation atising
out of or related to this Agreement, whichever Is later, Agency shali maintain all
financlal records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. All
other Records shall be maintained to the extent necessary to clearly reflect actions
taken. During this record retention period, Agency shall permit the County's
authorized representatives’ access to the Records at reasonable times and places

for purposes of examining and copying.

_ Debt Limitation. This Agreement is expressly subject to the limitations of the
Oregon Constitution and Oregon Tort Clalms Act, and is contingent upon
appropriation of funds. Any provisions hereln that conflict with the above referenced

laws are deemed inoperative to thal extent.

. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unconstitutional,
illegal or unenforceable, this Agreement nevertheless shall remain in full force and
effect and the offending provision shall be stricken. The Court or other authorized
body finding such provision unconstitutional, itfegal or unenforceable shall construe
this Agreement without such provision to give effect to the maximum extent possible

the intentions of the Parties.

. Integration, Amendment and Waiver, Exceptas otherwise set farth herelin, this
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties on the matter of
the Project, There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or

5




wrilten, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No walver, consent,
modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either Party unless in
writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary approvals have been obtained.
Such walver, consent, modlfication or change, if made, shall be effective only in the
specific instance and for the speific purpose given. The failure of either Party to
enforce any provision of this Agreement shail not constitute a waiver by such Paity
of that or any other provision.

. Interpretation. The titles of the sections of this Agreement are inserted for
convenlence of reference only and shall be disregarded In construing or interpreting
any of its provisions,

Independent Contractor, Each of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an
independent contractor for purposes of this Agreement. No representative, agent,
employee or contractor of one Party shall be deemed to he a representative, agent,
employee or confractor of the ather Party for any purpose, except to the extent
spedifically provided herein, Nothing hereln Is Intended, nor shall it be construed, to
create between the Parties any relationshlip of principal and agent, partnership, joint
veniure or any similar relationship, and each Party hereby spacitically disclaims any
such relationship.

. No Third-Party Beneficiary, Agency and County are the only parties to this
Agreement and are the only pariies entitled o enforce its terms. Nothing In this
Agreement gives, is intended to glve, or shall be construed to give or provide any
benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such
third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as
intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement.

. Subcontract and Assignment. Agency shall not enter into any subgontracts for
any of the work required by this Agreement, or assign or transfer any of Its interest
in this Agreement by operation of law or othetwise, without obtaining prior written
approval from the County, which shall be granted or denied in the County's sole and
absolute discretion. County’s consent to any subcontract shall not relieve Agency
of any of its dutles or obligations under this Agreement,

. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (electronic
or otherwise), each of which shall be an original, all of which shall constitute the
same instrument.

. Survival. All provisions in sections.8, 8, and 9 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

. Necessary Acts, Each Party shall execute and deliver to the others all such further
instruments and documents as may be reasonably hecessary to carry oul this
Agreement.




0. Successors in Interest, The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding tpon
and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective authorized

successors and assigns.

P. Force Majeure. Neither Agency nor County shall be held responsible for delay or
default caused by events outslde of the Agency or Counly's reasonable contro
including, but not limited to, fire, terroriam, riot, acts of God, or war, However,
Agenoy shall make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of
delay or defaull and shail upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue
performance of its obligations under this Agreement,

Q. Confidentiality. Agency acknowledges that it and its employees or agents may, i
the course of performing their responsibilities under this Agreement, be exposed to
or acquire confidential information. Any and all information of any form obtained by
Agency or its employees or agents In the performance of this Agreement shall be
deemed confidential information of the County ("Confidential [nformation”). Agency
agrees to hold Confidential Information in strict confidence, using at isast the same
degree of care that Agency uses in maintalning the confidentiality of iis own
confidential information, and not to copy, repraduce, sell, assign, license, market,
transfer or otherwise dispose of, give, or discluse Confidential Information to third
partles or use Confidential Information for any purpose unless specifically
authorized in writing under this Agreement.

[Signatures on Following Page]




IN WITNESS HEREOQF, the Parties have executed this Agreement by the date set
forth opposite their names below.

Clackamas County Clackamas River Water
Chair Jim Bernard PO Box 2439
Commissioner Sonia Fischer Clackamas, OR 97015
Commissioner Ken Humberston (503) 722-9220

Commissioner Paul Savas
Commissioner Martha Schrader

f—_—-‘—/ .
& eah N
Chair, Board of Gounty Commissioners eil/Stgnature”

[\l ) | - C\ T =7 _ﬁ_z_lé/ 22
Date L|-|ug1| inl, CRW Board Presldent
MO«)LU\ QM‘C& @/ % / }Q
Recording Seé&etary Date ’

Appyaued as to form

Coylfifty Counsel




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER AMENDMENT #2

Amendment and renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement between Clackamas County
(COUNTY) and CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER (AGENCY) Dated July 11, 2019 for the
provision of Community Service Work Crews.

This Amendment adds language to Terms of Agreement.

AMEND:

1. Term

CHANGE TO ADD:

The contract term will be effective upon full execution and terminate June 30,
2022. This serves as 2 (two) of 3 (three) renewals on this contract dated July 11,
2019,

This Amendment, when signed by Clackamas River Water and the Board of County
Commissioners, on behalf Clackamas County, will become part of the contract
document dated Juiy 11, 2019,



Clackamas County

Chair Tootie Smith
Commissloner Sonia Fischer
Commissioner Mark Shull
Commissioner Paul Savas
Commissioner Martha Schrader

Chair, Board of County Commissioners

Date

Recording Secretary

Approved as to form

Sl sl
£ounty Counsel

Clackamas River Water
PO Box 2439
Clackamas, OR 970156
(503) 722-9220

Authorized Signature

Printed Name/Title

Date



Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-1
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda items as presented
EFFECTIVE DATE June 16, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, CFO
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Acknowledge receipt of information as part of the approval of the consent
REQUESTED agenda.
DOCUMENTS 1) Earnings Statements for May 31, 2021 Payrolls — 2 payrolls - $262,328.76
ATTACHED 2) Monthly Check History for May 31, 2021 - $631,630.86 {net)

Jrne 10, 2027 Apenda Irem CeA-T Page 1 of 1



WEEK 18 BATCH 2993 40 PAYS

0 Employees Wil Overflow Statement Earnings Statement
0 Overflow Statement 1 Totat Statement
Tot Cksfchrs:000000030613 Total Pages:00000000015 - Pags count nol applicable for iReporis
First No. Last Nao. Totat
Checks: ARPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000

Vouchers: 00006180001  0COD0O180040 00000000013

Tolal Vouchers Bypassed: 00000

Tolal Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0001

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

126327.98 GROSS
77582,59 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS}
12050.47 FEDERAL TAX
762537 SOCIAL SECURITY
1783.35 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUKDIFLUMLIE TAX
7419.88 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
97448.91 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0001

NON-NEGOTIABLE ~VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE ~VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



WEEK 20 BATCH 3282 44 PAYS .
0 Employess Wilh Overfiow Statement Earnings Statement

0 Overflow Statemant 1 Tolal Statement
Tot CksfVchrs:00000000016 Tolal Pages:00000000018 - Page count nol applicable for iReporis
First No. Last No. Taotal
Cheacks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000001
Wouchars: 00000200001 00000200043  6000G00CO15

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000

Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0001

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

136000.78 GROSS
85443.18 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
12422.72 FEDERAL TAX
8215.68 SOCIAL SECURITY
1921.40 MEDICARE
00 MEDICARE SURTAX
00 SUNDNFLIMLE TAX
7965.03 STATE TAX
00 LOCAL TAX
104428.00 DEDUCTIONS
1047.95 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0001

NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



[ :39vd

208l 144 080182-L10¥H $1708 GNY HIHSVM
88'52) £90382-L10FH SAAOTD ANV HONIHM S3VIAEES LAY L10d=a AN0OH 02520 LE0ev0is0 L4128
L8704 4804 8842 §3903am OT1 "03 NIAHVYD B NMYT SHHYID 88100 L202/¥0/50 9128
96°€SE'L BeSP OPLL¥20 LNNOW [3M0v AL L
1580€°L L131820 dOLd¥ 1 H3INVYOT "ONI LNIWNHEIAOCD MTD £LE00 LE20Z/¥0/50 81E6
g0'gLL ooglLt 606801 AVYHDOMd JONVISISSY JIAO TN ONI SH3UIN3D VISV 68000 L E20Z/¥0/50 LA YA
0oge 00'ce G69E8 HOHYIA ONILS3 L WCAONYY ONI 8331AM3S ONILSEL dIW-0I9 §Z5E0 L20Z/0/50 £LLE6
L8796 1£°86 PPEEL000CEZE MddNS "LNIYIN ONICTINE - C006YYEe# D0V ONI STDIAHTS WHOLINN HAVINYHY §820C L202/¥0/50 2i126
00'EBLE) 00562721 oLty S.d90 YAS AON LD 8LEDINM ONEIVIILATYNY NIX3TV 29200 1202170150 (TN
+0'290°2 ¥0'290'2 1207 WiV SISATYNY WZINOLSND »NVE SN 65610 1202/42/50 [AA%]
£30P8'E £9'0%8'2 LEIPLIS0 S3DIAYZES INCHG - 9296 0048-€2.L-208 #ODV NOO3HC 40 S1LVLS - 133918110 88200 1202/ 1150 121G
84°109'% 8L 109 LEF LGS0 dd SIDIAGZS SNCHG - 9296 0049-€2L-€05 #OOV ONI 56000 L202/92/60 0Z1§
8€'G2OL Ll'S¥ STTAOA LZ/ET/E ¥SIA
ov'ss 1GILISNAONG Le/seie YSIA
00°8LL TIEAdNYD LE/SEH ¥SIA
68’6t ONYDZIOH Le/8ely YSIA
0Ly ADAHE Le/Gery ¥SIA
€985 STNINWND LZ/SEY WSIA
00'eLeL Avd L2528y ¥SIA
QT SLrL 3Hav Le/Sey Y3IA
68'68Y'L  WYNNNOHOIM LZ/Seir wSIA
02984’ LFTdIbL Le/sery ¥SIA ANYE SN 6660 Le0e/e/so 19551
£0ZZ9'v £0'2z8'y FC/L0/S0 Hd NOCILONQAC TIOHAVYd AYVINITTOA ONI §6000 L20e/L S0 gLig
EPZPE'E EYTHR'Z LZ/40/50 ‘NOILONG3T TOHAYE AGYLINTTIOA NOOFEO 40 J1V.LS - 1399181110 98800 L202/1 LI5S0 LLLS
Yo v80'e POY80°E LE HdV 1202 HdY - ONITHE LINVHOHEIN YINVE 8N 65610 LZ20g/11IG0 9LLe
£2°220'G £2°220'S L2 ¥YIN SISATYNY H3WO01SND MNVE SM 85610 L20zZ0/s0 Gilg
TY.LOL MOIHD divd LNNOIWY IDIOANI NOILdIHOS3a HOANIA diva  #MOFHD
MNVadV MNveE
L20Z/LEE oL 120Z/LiG
HALVM HIAR SYINVHIVYTO WNd2SZl XATAPRALLY
l:30vd ONILSIT AHOLSIH MOdHO ATTHLNOIN 1SIHADdY



¢-30vd

go'BrL [ROVAN AQvdDdn 3L
00'6¥L B6CLE HOYHOHEN AT
00°8LL ¥028 1202 AVIN 10H LYd DONIHOLINOW ATHLNO®W
00'v8Z'E BLLLLL 1202 "d¥ 10 LYd ONIHO LINOW A THLNONW "ONI ISNOJSZY LSHid €000 LZog/eLrso LBLEB
00950t 00'950'v 20254 AONYNILNIYIN DNIdVYOSANYT DNIdYDISANY] SNI3HD TY.LISAHD 955820 LZ0g/e /50 96LEs
00°c0e's 00'002's BSLLY AFAYNS LIS STV MIAIA - | J3TH0 MSYL "ONI 'SHOAIAYNS ANV SSYLINOD 2420 LZ0g/eLEn G6LEo
SEEPT SE'ebe SL/g-¥LIS '£EL6602 19-FL/S - LINYETINI 379vD ATHLNOW 1LSY2WO0D 1SYIWOD 65820 120Z/€L/50 v61LE6
009,58 00'9.5 YOE0L SHdd ONIJdIWNA STHOJS D77 13AVED ONY ANVYS NIATOD #0290 LZ20g/eL/en £6LEo
Q¥ e Dy e L1202 Wd¥ HAY-ZIIAEIS TYAOWTIH HSYHL - 0LEY0# D0V ONi OO0 F0vauvo SYWWMOVID L2200 L20Z/ELIS0 cBlLee
00°sey [sleRerA4 QZye-02 MIED INO ALNNCD SYINVAIYID 00200 L20Z/eLIso L6126
00°00s'.LE 00008'LE LZ¥250dN MELSNOD 40 NEIT NI 332 - L 38VH 80 ONZg ALNMCDO SYWWHIVYTID 00200 L202g/eLIs0 06125
9028 80'2¢g 100000GE02S LZ AYIN - S3IddNS SNOLLMOS ALTIDYd QM ALID 952¥0 LEOZ/ELIG0 6gLEE
ZOGGL'L S obd +LOGEO0 JdMADVE OdV d1m
LG80E'} LLLIBCO d0LdY T HINYOT "ONI LINSIAINY3ACD AMMJD LLE00 LZog/eLreo 28128
0F'9Ee’ 0v'9Eg') BB60E SONIS DNLLAT CAAL "ONI DNISO 2AYOSYD 6¥270 LZOZ/IELIG0 L8126
00°6L2'2 60'¢/2'T SriSL SEATYA TIVLSNI ONY 3DIAN3S INYHD ONI IDIAETS SNVHD S.AaN8 9L€1L0 LZ20g/EL/80 98L2s
£¥'BLL 80'Z¢ 228820000628 ddNg "LNIVIA SNIQTING - 0006¥9+E6# "D0V
LE'86 129820000628 FAddNs " LNIYIAN SNIQTING - 0006+9vEs# 00V DN SADIAEIS WHOSIND MHYNVEY §8200 LZ0Z/ELIS0 G81LZ6
05'se 0g'9e £¥58S SHIMSYM LV 14 ¥31dvaV 1IN00S FUVMAEYH ® 0334 VLIHDIM 89100 LZ0g/F)/E0 ¥81Es
GL8Le SL'9LZ Hdv _‘o-mhmm_%mm § 0L by "3AIYO ONZB IS LY HaLYM Z0VIdNS SATIAYIAS INFWNOMIANI HIALYAM 01100 L2z arso £8L26
0159 01l€g9 L0641 ALVYAD HALYM 00L-GE ONI IDAETS OLNY AVG INVS 65700 LZ0T/v0r50 Z8LeB
vLVYEL PLPYE'L 8GE0ELD {-1Z 84O INY1d 00£2 ALITYAD HIALYM 00L-GL ONI QYYO0Y L3 §18E0 1202 0rs0 LeLee
£2°8L £2'8l LE/E-8e/T 1202 WY - (§280€1) LO-C0ZE64-40 #:00V 40 ALD TALID NOSIHO 8%000 L20Z/y0/e0 08lLes
0L¥91 0L P91 0Z/%-€ 00-025€-¥2 G AV IS 1028 40 ALID FANYATIN 82100 L 20e/v0/50 64125
L0 8104 L LEGOOANI 002-81L 00k-21 SONYNILNIYW ITOIHIA 002-G 40 ALID FMNVYMIIN 88100 12020150 8.1LE8
IVI0L MOIHD dIvd LNNOQNY HDI0OAN] NOQILJIHOSAC HOUNIA H31va # MOIHD
MNVadY MNVL
1202/LeIG oL  Le0e/ LG
HILVYM HIAR SYWYHOVID INdZSZL  LZ0Z/LZISO
¢ 39vd DNILSIT AHOLSIH MO3HD ATHLNOIN 1SIHMOdV



£ 3IOVd

ST R £2°06E'T L2 WdY NIWaY L2 dd¥ NINGY
LE'ESL'LL 12 HdY NOILVLS diNd 12 ded¥ NOILYLS dANd
g1PLE'SE 1202 WV oL LZ0Z ddV INV1d INFWLYIHL HA1VM 384 12000 L20z/eL/50 L1228
Z0EBs L Zl'ose'e LE/80 - 82120 120Z ¥V - SIDYVYHO DNIdWNG
98'869'c AL T4 FOIOAN! TYLNIWITddNS
LLeel'e 8¢rE0 - LELO 1202 924 - SADHVHO ONIdWNG
127089 0€/+0 - LE/ED 202 HdV - S3DHYHD ONIdWNG 40 ALID 'ALID NODIHO 8¥000 RAVAIR 0] 0Lees
65°9¥6 B5'OV6 LZI0E0 Hd §3Na NOINN FWISHV NOOFHO £4EC0 Le0e/eL/so 602Z5
90°CLy LGyl 10069869841 NS 301350 - 822eB98E#A! - 081 L9Z06#1 00V
88FEE L000908898L1 dNS J21440 - 822EB92ERTN - 081 LGTO6HLODY ONI L0d33d 331440 90€C0 RAVAER ] 80¢¢6
627988 GV LY Ceir-1ife LeBarYe LI NVWINNYH L5241 ~ 10-1988¥FE
2y oLl LLPQLIE 8726201 HG NYONVIN 3S 0016 - 8-#26201
88861 £2/-52/8 9820181 w0 ONZ8 38 04491 ©-9¢018L
Y3628 LHP-91/E 9-€50201L 0 NYONVYIA 3S 0016 - 9-€5020L IYENLIYN MN €1000 Le02/eL/s0 £0228
216.0'88 21'B640'8€ G66C81Z.L6 gv0 ¥3dNS dS ¥X¥ 0524 1202 ONI STTVS AHOMYL G404 SAISHLHON £6910 L202/elis0 202¢es
ao'esl a0°esl 8.g402 OML 31vD ONEHCOA QYIHEIAQ 0”3 £6E00 Lz0e/elis0 G0¢es
006189 00°64L PEGL AHOM LOVHINOD
Q0°09L's 9g51 ASYHIHNd LINIFWCINTS AEOMLEN "ONI dNOUD ADQTONHOZL INCHQYN 08140 L202/ELS0 ¥0226
00884 Q08sL 85091 d¥3 ANV LND VLSIA §250-022 ONI NODIHO 40 S3VIAHAS A9 M +8ZZ0 FAVA AT £0226
[AArAc)d 2L'2ov LeEHC NOILSNAZA T10HAYd ALY LNMTOA L8Y -18NYL INTWIEILIH VINDI L2100 LeQg/erisn [AVA4S
00°0¥Z'v o0 ove'y 0E¥ee dd¥ §30iAH3S VoA ONOTONVHEYH d MINGNY AUV 0F2L0 LZ0Z/EeLS0 Loezs
SE'B88L'Yy (4254 1 Leerian 0z-06ee S04 ¥
e 0¥ L €2819.67 0Z¥€ 8Dd 2 01-C451 §0d 0L £0-0450 80d 0}
S¥°908'L L026%.87 02-08B0€ SOd &L ONIQD H3IMO4 G H #2100 Lz0geLiso 0cees
gLee0'e g/'e60't L-CLOP¥20 0830 H31ddNS 1M | M8V1L ONI SNOILNTIOS d3L¥AA ISS 88220 LeQz/eL/an 66126
€180t £L'801L 8.52¥e-00-29¢Y SAINT NV IO HOLYHANED ONITOD S1dvd LE0Z/EL/S0 861286
ANINNTD S1u¥vd OLNY Vd¥N "v3(J L88€0
8588y PGl 06L& TOH1vd AdSSIN
86'6- 2615 TOYLYd JASSIN
TYLOL MO3HD aivd LNOQWY JOIOANI NOLLdINOS3a HOAN3A ALYaQ  #MOFHD
MNVEdY HNVYS
L202/1e/S oL  12Qd/L/G
HILVM H3ATH SYINVYMOVTO NdZS:Zh L202/L2/S0
£:d9vd ONLLSIT AJOLSIH ¥03HO ATTHLNOW LSIHMOdVY



¥ :39vd

0E'gSs 0L°68 286525 SSYHE SEATYA TIVE T
09°Eey 69LLLE SISV 8E20-P0ZT ONI SISIEdYIINT NOSNONIL P8I0 L20Z/6L/G0 18726
00°'9¥9'88 00°9¥9'88 g 0¥ FHLASHOH - NOILONHLSNOD INITHILVAL 071 SHOLOVHINGD SO £0Z70  LZOZSLISO 05226
LT2ve'L Jrassy Le/G0is JDIAHIS INOHJ MNITAHMLNTD #9100 L20Z/ELIS0  62ZE6
5200-507505
0001z 000l 1202 1207 SINA dIHSHITNIN YANY TYNOILYNYTLNI VINUY 92500 LZ0Z/6LS0 92226
9062050502040
LE'96 1896 9.9EE0000625 MddNS “LNIVIN ONITTING - CO06¥SPE6# D0V ONI SZOIAYZS WHOSINND MuYINYYY 58200 LZ0Z/6LS0 L2226
bLEOY'L o L8SLLL AYA - 1ONA3Q TIOHAVA “TOA~EXNX0 00V IONWHNSSY 3411 ATiAY4 NYOIIWY 20000 LZ0Z/6L/50 92226
¥5°201 be°L0L 2922096466 TYINTY T1LL08 ONI VSN SYOUIVY 26000 L20Z/6L/S0 52226
LELL Ll 974512 20ave O77'SNOIS INIDOV £6820  LEOZ6LISO  EETE
26 LPL'6T 7514162 V2/5/e0 1207 834 - GISVYHOHN ¥V QYYOS YILVM MHOH HLNOS #2000 L20T/ELSC  £2226
¥5°020'y v&'0Z0'Y $685ZTY FAOVLSOd ANV SNISSIO0H 1202 HdV SOIHJYYO SSINISNE LHOMM G0LED  1202/EL/SC 22226
zL898't b 65y 0-bIGL-1192616 IW 38 0016 - STDIANTS TYACWSY HEVHL - HdV
86'668 ZPIS1-018ZS5LE SHIAIY - SIDIANIS TWACWIY HSVHL 0202 ¥y NO93HO 40 INIWIOYNYI ILSVM 0SL00  LZOZ/EL/G0 L2226
0L0Z4'L 0L'0Zh' £8298L00045Y ZE0V00 # LAY ANN-TY NOILONELSNOD DIIOVd ASTIVA 29920  L20Z/EL/S0 02226
ZrSr0'L ZrSv0'L 2929 AHE 1) FUYAMAHYH 2 31Y7d ONILNNOW T¥Na ONI STOHLNOD ALTYIO3S 01220 LZ0Z/EL/Se 61226
R AR AR T Ngﬂm% mm WNINTYd HLIYEH NAS NODIHO0 DOSSY SLOIMLISKIIVIDAES 22500 1Z0T/EIS0 91226
16°958"LL SLTYTEE 12/S0/70 1202 HY - GISYHORN HALYM
229l 'y VZ/L0/50 1202 U - GISVHOMMND YILYM QUVOE HILYM MHOH HLNOS ¥2000  1Z0Z/ELS0 L1226
07028 02048 121281 HO ¥ISN ¥3d 334 YISO ATHLNOW / £5L0-SWHO NOILMIOS  1Z0Z/EL/S0 91226
INIWIOYNYIN SCHODTY ANOTD L6SED
£0°06 0005 12LTY0S699T S0IAYTS ONICOIRHS 071 LSTMHLEON OIHHS LOLE0  LZOZ/EL/SO  GLZZ6
TR 89°0F POEZZBL50S ONILNIMS
e 098/ 1616905 LN3Y "ONI VSN HODIM 62200 120T/EM/SD  1ZZ6
ZZ0LE 22048 966157014 LNSY "ONI‘YSN HODIM 62200 1Z0Z/ELS0 €226
98908 98°90¢ 958ESHELEE 3vaT T10AS NIZ TvEOTO SIMOE ASNLID BL000  1202/E1/S0 21226
IVLOL MOTHD TIvd LNNOWY S9I0ANI NOILJRIOS3A HOANIA 31va  #MO3HD
MNVYadY HMNYE
Le0e/LEe/S oL L20E/L/S
HIALYM HIAR SYINYMODVID NdZSZ) 1202122160
¥ :3ovd ONLLST AHOLSIH MOdHD ATHLNOI 1SHMOdV



S :H9vd

Do'oLl FA TAANE| LSND) NIWAY - ONIIIMS LOT ONIMEV - AYN
oooge £g82ela 0# L8NS} S0 - ONIJIIMS LOT DNV -AVIA DNIdIIAMS 13 LNVYD 000 LE0SILZIS0 15226
LE'96 LE'OE €106£00000625 Mddns "LNIYIAN 9NIATING - C006¥SYes# "D0Y ONI S82IAHES WHOAINN MYVINYHY $5200 1202/42/50 05226
20 LEE'LL 00'ESL'y LLEZYE SINIOVIH ONILSTIL NIXOLONVYAD
Z0'8LL'gL FALTA T4 INIDVEH ANY SAUVYANYLS DONILSTL NIXOLONYAD NI SIXYHEY v0P0 1202142150 o4 As]
co'000'0L 00°500°0) FAR AN DONIANNA LDV INJWIASENENISH d53N DNI ADNIOVY SONVYENSNI YHM LP220 L20eise/50 o g A
18°¢69'8 LQ'E69'C Z56v61 NY1d Hd.LSYIN SHILINIOYd ONI SHIINIDONT Q708D L4480 LS0T/6LIS0 FA A4
6%'800'5 $8°/84°4 P09zt FOVISCOd SNY DNISSII0H 1202 HdY
G90Z2'e £r0ozey FOVIS0d GNY ONISSIDOUEL LE0Z HdY SOHAYHED SSINISNE LHOHM 90180 LEQE/6L /50 9226
£o'0s 0c0% LZ/ELIE0 334 NIWAY 43 DNIADNIOY AONVHNSNI YHM L¥220 LZ0Z/6LIG0 [y f A
LLBFE'L LL'6Y9'L [NArANIo] N NI SHIWOQLSND W04 SLNVd 12521 2/S2/T DMODN - NOISSIANOD L2Gere1/g0 b4 A4
, HE VA ALNAOD SYAIYHOYD HLHON 62800
20°C68'E BLBLYL 8/5Z6v6.86 SIADEYHD INOHL 113D LO000-ZZeSL LT L DOV
88'vI0C CLEZ6YE.B6 SHADYUYHO INOHL 1730 LOQ00-ZZ28 L LZLr# DOV SSITTHIM NOZIHZA $6820 LZ0E/E1/50 c£¥Zee
G9'L66 S5°LBB SSELECANI SINCID DiddvdlL ONIOD ATddNS AL34YS O1d4vH1 09280 LZ0Z/61/580 oreee
85°82L'E 86'gEL'E LZ0g/L0/E0 S0¥d LINFWISHNEWITH WO SHINHOM NODIHO 20SSY S1O1W1SI0 TYIDZdE L5300 1202/61/50 LP2Z6
007 0¥+ L 000k L 9.88.L5 J8FH0HTAATY TV LSNI IDIAHSS 6600-12 ONIIVINIWNOHIANT ALID HUFARE 8PSED L202/61/50 0rzze
82°50F BEC'S0F 6PZ5T LY SISSVID ALTAYS S04 09 STTALIAYS ZL1H SPIED 1202761150 5E2EE
0o°ess 00°0%8 122002 DONILNIMEL TYIDH3NNCD 1 dNOHD YIS LZ0ZI61LI50 i)
NITdIWVYd DNIHSITENd XOOTLING 601+0
00°COv'T 00°00%'2 LEILLIS0 /090 LZ/L0/A0 B4 ONDINING TYNNNY YHO ALIHOHLNY HLTVIH NODIHO 82620 LZ02/61/50 FASAAS]
00 0ov'e 0000+'E LRS00 LZAL/S QL L4 JIANY H3LYM TYNNNY YHO ALIMOHLINY H17V3H NOD3HC 82620 1202/61/50 oezee
LR LOL'EL L8°L0L'EL LZfeL/S0 ALID NODIHO NI SHINOISND MYD HO4 INTFWAYA 240 ALID ‘ALID NODIYHO 2P000 1202/61/50 SE2ZB
60'09z'c 60°092'¢ VEIZLIS0 QO NILSND OLSAS 4 LA LE2/SZ-LE/seiz0 H1SIT SADIANAS HILYM 9DCA0T MO 95000 LZ0Z/61/50 b AAS
000zZg'L QO0bF 0551 MHOM LOWHINOD
000838 6¥S51 2AVHDAN HHOMULIN "ONESNOHD ADCTONHDZL INOYAYIN 081040 L202/61/50 £27C6
+9'8e 9897 £85e8¢-L10+H HOTNA HYYS3 SIADIANIS LIATHD L0430 INOH 04820 L20Z/eLie0 ZETTH
TYLOL MOEHD aivd INNQINY FOI0AN] NOILJIEDSaT HOAN3IA JIva #MOIHD
MNVEAY MNVYE
1202/18/S oL +e0e/LS
HIALVYM HEIAR SYINYIOVID NdZS:ZL  LZOZILZISO
§:39Vd ONILSIT AHOLSIH MOAHD ATHLNOI LSIHMOAY



9:39Vd

0§°L¢L 55682810 Y31 ANY 3334400
05°L2L jeTASTA N Y31 GNY 334400 FTIAETS V3L % 334400 dN0 QTHOM EL8E20 {Z02/L2/50 XA
oove 00'+6 22956080t SIDINGAS TCHILNOD 183d Avi ONI TYNOILYNYIING XINIWHIL 28200 LEOE/L2/S0 04226
0O0vE'Z 00066 v¥Ses 440 MO8 13i144vIdE
0c'0sg’L L10¥BS 240 MOT8 W ivdl 9820-F022 ONITVINIWNOHIANT ALID Y3NIM 8YSED LZRE/LT/E0 69226
gL'8ey 98’802 S66586¥01L INTY
oesLe BSYZe.LYOL JNTIY "ONI'VYSM HODIY 82200 LZ02742/60 89226
00°G6Y 00's6t 98691 HiVd3Y FLVD HIOAHEESTY HIAHLVYIA NOILOAYISNOD ® JONIH 278vYI13¥ §1200 LZ0E/LE/G0 19226
QU'sHe 00'ebe 2061 AYXZ IWIIA3W HITYEM TYNOILLYENI20 IONIUIAOYE LELO0 LZOE/LT/80 99226
aLLzZL'e cL1eL's 1202 NOT LOQ0L-9241 8CL # 20V 'QLT 9 ORAY ‘3417 dNCHD TVIONVYNIA TYdIONIEd 88EE0 1202748150 £9zee
86ELE'L g8'cie'L LLBEPLD 1-12 540 INVId 002 ALMYND Y3LVM 00L-GL ONI QY20 134 51880 L202rL2/50 Y9276
IR ARE £0'219'% L2100 - NI 354 397S0 MOY ALID NODTEO H1D 1S 40 ALID TALID NODTHO 8¥000 LZ0Z/iers0 £9Zes
#0586 0996 L2 L0 Hd S3NA NOINN FNDSHY NODFEHO £L800 LE02/LEIS0 FACTAAS)
00'6E8'2 00'6E6'2 1951 dMMOVYE ¥1vad "ONI dNOYD ADOONHOZ L INOYHAVYIN 081 +0 1202/ L2150 19226
00'6EL'B 00°6EL'S GCLeL SHNOH HO8Y1 ¥vW - NYT SLNINEIAOD 40 TONNCD INYT 6820 1202/ L2r50 08zZzs
gzZ'9.¥'e SZ¥ELL 2.9l FVIAGES TIVLISNI #8001L2
00°gee'e 0809l FUAYES AV 143 §250-4022 ONI NCO93HO0 40 S3DIAEIS G ¥ M v8220 LZ0Zg/LEmen 65CCo
cL95 ZL'9G6Y L2i/et JWOD Y3530 'NOILONAZd TI0HAYd AYVYLNMTOA L5% -1SNHL INFWIHILITH YINDI LELGD 1202/ L2150 85ZEH
00" 48¢ 00°L8¢€ PEGGY SIADIAYIAS TYNOISSTEJ0Hd ONI SHIMSNY WH LZE00 1202/42150 L8228
9e'civ'e ge'5iP'T 128+286 14 09¢ QL0042 ONI SASIHGHAINT NOSNDHAA #¥810 L202/L2160 96ees
[ [ A G088z FHNLYNDIS HaDON H04 INJWZSYE 40 AH3IAIAC ONI LHOdSNYEL L0391a 81280 L20Z/ L2160 GGeCes
00'c0L oo'eol 90821829 £0) ONVTLEOd S0 ALID - DNINZLO JIAFHLS HO ALTHNS YND SE8E0 RAVATRASIY] vaees
02'58 Vet 9L NNF-21 AV SADIAYIS ENOH - 9296 00.9-E22-805 #00V HMNITASNLNID #9100 1202/ L2150 £G2Z8
[Hgvicla-dh 0P 091 09€908 ALYHQAHEOTHO WNANINATY ONIOD 1810 YIgNNI0D 3avOsSVYD 94510 1202/42/50 FASTAAS]
00°G+S Q0ssL +ecgld } AAISHIAIY - ONIJTITIMS LOT DNIMEY - AV
AVLOL MO3HD divd ANNONY 3DIOANI NOILL4I¥D53a HOONIA 31va #MOIHD
MNVYEdY ANV
120Z/LE/S Ol  L20c/hG
HILVM HIAR SYINVMOVID Wdzs:izl  1Z0Z/L2Z/S0
9 :Hovd ONLLSIT AHOLSIH MOAMD ATTHLNOIN 1SIHA2dV



L:3avd

98°'0£9°LE9 ISYOTHD TVi0oL 19043 SIHL NI SHDIHD 801
92°0£9°1£9 TIVLOL MNVEdY
[V oWATA 05'e L800gL0 Y3 L ONY 333400
AYLOL MOZHD aivd INOONY JIIOANI NO1LJIMISAT HOONIA q1va #MOIHO
MNVELY MNYL
1208/ Vel oL 1L202/Lis
MALYM HIAN SYINVHOV IO INdZS:ZL  L202/.1Z/SO
L:30vd ONILSIT AHOLSIH MOdHD ATTHLNOIN 1SIHMOdY



Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-2
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Cash Position and Transfers
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda
EFFECTIVE DATE June 10, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF Carol Bryck, CFO
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approve the consent agenda items.
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Cash and Investment Position as of May 31, 2021 is:
Genetral
Checking LGIP Total
Balance as of 04/30/2021 $ 5154,888 $ 13,053,240 $ 18,208,128
Cash receipts 1,429,677 1,429,677
Payroll (262,329) (262,329)
A/P checks (631,631) (631,631)

Bond and othet electronic payments -
Transfers between accounts - - 3

Balance as of 05/31/2021 § 5,690,605 §$ 13,053,240 § 18,743,845

Interest Earnings for May 2021 are not included.

June 10, 2021 Agenda Itemn CA-2 Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-3
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 10, 2021
SUBJECT Project Acceptance: Accept Assets Constructed Under the Forsythe
Rd. Waterline — Phase 1 Project, CIP 19-5251
I move to approve the “Notice of Acceptance” for the Fotsythe Rd.
DRAFI MOTION Watetline — Phase 1, to establish the project completion date and authorize
the General Manager’s sighature on said Notice of Acceptance.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 10, 2021
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON Joseph D. Eskew PE ~ Engineering Manager
BOARD ACTION "The Board is requested to accept the water system constructed under the
REQUESTED Forsythe Rd. Watetline — Phase 1 Project.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — Project Flyer
ATTACHED Exhibit B — Notice of Acceptance
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND "This project was a planned CIP project that consisted of approximately 2,000+ LF
of 8-inch watetline along Forsythe Rd. to replace aging watetlines that requite
frequent leak repairs.
The project was bid in August of 2020 with the bid opening on August 4™ with
twelve contractors bidding. Construction started on September 28, 2020 and was
substantially completed on November 13, 2020. Once statted, the project
progressed consistently to completion. Final project pavement restoration was
postponed to Spring 2021 during dryer weathet.
Cost Sumimary:
FY 2019-20 Budget % 572,000.00
Approx. Total Project Cost $ 506,000.00
(includes all vendors, contractors, internal labor and material)
Construction
Engineers Estimate: $ 459,630.00
Contract Bid Amount: $ 418,250.00
Net Change Orders + § {4,749.60) (1.14%)
Final Contract Amount $ 413,500.40
STAFF Staff recommends the Board approve the Notice of Acceptance for the Forsythe

RECOMMENDATION Rd Waterline — Phase 1 project.

June 10, 2021

Consent Agenda Item 3 Page 1 of 1




Project Fact Sheet Forsythe Rd. Waterline — Phase 1

2020 CIP 19-5251

EXHIBIT A

Project Details

The Forsythe Rd. Waterline — Phase 1 Project is a Clackamas River Water (CRW) Capital Improvement Project to replace
existing waterline. This project consists of laying approximately 2,000 feet of 8-inch diameter ductile iron waterline;
including connections to existing waterlines, services and other related facilities. Construction will be along Forsythe Rd.
in rural Clackamas County between the Oregon City limit and Highland Rd.

Construction Cost: Approximately $500,000

Benefits: This project will replace the existing
1960 era 6-inch waterline on the route. The
waterline is under sized and beyond its useful
service life, resulting in deteriorated pipeline
causing numerous leaks.

s

]% G —5qu-ie
' 3
LErS ]

E

I

Construction Schedule and
Various Impacts

Schedule:
Design: January - July 2020
Construction: August 2020 — October 2020

Time of Day Affected:
Monday — Friday, 7:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.

Impact: Construction activity will produce
noise, dust and diesel equipment fumes
during work hours. During construction, there
will be open trenches and equipment in the area such as; large dump trucks, excavators, cutting of pavement, and trench
rollers, and compactors. Erosion control and spill prevention will be performed to protect natural resources. Roadways
disturbed by the utility work will be repaved at the end of the project. Customers will be notified prior to loss of water
service, which will be limited to the duration necessary to carry out the required connections.

Traffic: There will be lane restrictions during work hours. Access to local driveways will remain open but they may be
impeded for short term work efforts. Emergency access will be provided at all times.

Contact Information: Joseph D. Eskew PE, Engineering Manager; (503) 723-2565

16770 SE 82™ Drive, Clackamas, Oregon 97015 | 503-722-9220 | www.crwater.com
Hours: Monday — Thursday 7:30 a.m. — 5:00 p.m., Friday 7:30 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.

Clackamas River Water



e

Clackamas River Water Exhibit B

Notice of Acceptance

Clackamas River Water hereby accepts the project constructed in connection
with the Forsythe Rd. Waterline — Phase 1, CIP 19-5251, on this 10t day of
June, 2021. Acceptance of this project by Clackamas River Water shall not
constitute acceptance of any work not in accordance with the Contract
Documents, nor shall it relieve the Contractor of his continuing obligation for work

guarantee for one (1) year after the above date.

Clackamas River Water

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager



Agenda Item — 8
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SUBJECT Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED
Table of Contents
The Management Report will have two sections: (A) an overview of GM

and Staff activity during the month; (B) informational articles (when
available)

A. Management Report

B. Informational articles- None at this time

June 10, 2021 Agenda ltem 8 Page I of 5




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 8

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SusjECT

Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAEER

PERSON

BOARD ACTION

REQUESTED

Todd Heidgerken

A. Management Report

June 10, 2021

1. Communications:

Monthly Report — The Monthly report will be sent out separately and
posted on the CRW website.

Intergovernmental Relations:

Regional Water Providers Consortium (RWPC) Board Meeting — The
RWPC Board met on June 2 to receive updates, elect officers, and talk
about the February Winter Storm impacts on water providers in the region.

The RWPC selected Tualatin Councilor Bridget Brooks to serve as the
Board Chair and West Linn Mayor Jules Walters will be the Vice Chair for
the coming year. The current “at large” Executive Committee membets
were reelected.

CRW’s General Manger participated in the panel discussion regarding the
ice storm impacts. An overview of what CRW experienced plus a focus on
the role of power, partnerships, people and communications. Todd
touched on the importance of each, the challenges encountered and shared
a couple of "lesson learned".

Portland State University’s Population Research Center completed the
2020 population and houschold estimates for each RWPC membet. This
update is provided annually. CRW’s population was estimated to be just
over 47,000 people. This reflected a nominal increase of 0.5% from our
2019 population estimate of 46,773.

Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) — The CRWP June 2 meeting
mchaded presentations from Clean Water Coopetative, InPipe Enetgy
Solution, and PGE. Clean Water Cooperative shared information about
their recent training exercises to deploy and test equipment used to protect

Agenda ltem & Page 2 of 5



June 10, 2021

intakes from upstream spills. CRW allowed them to train around the CRW
intake eatlier this year. InPipe Energy Solution talked about their
technology on energy recovety in water systems and discussed a tecent
program with the Hillsboro Water Department. Portland General Electric
(PGE) updated the CRWP members on summer opetations and reposted
that Timothy Lake was expected to fill. They started theit blue green algae
monitoring and expressed how working with the CRW lab has been going
very well. They have appreciated the timeliness of the information and the
additional detail that has been provided.

The CRWP members then continued to discuss the summer water supply
and agreed to schedule a check in meeting in July to discuss if any
modifications to the summer conservation messaging needed to be made.
Current river flows appear to be within a typical range.

Miscellaneous Intergovernmental Meetings -
s  Metro South Transfer Station Meeting — CRW staff provided an

overview of CRW propetty and facilities that are downstream of the
site being considered by Metro for a future recycling and transfer
center. There was an opportunity to ask questions and learn more
about what was being considered and discussions around
environmental and resiience measures.

¢ Oak Lodee Water Services (O1LWS) District — Staff met with OLWS
staff and consultant regarding the feasibility and potential for a
future intertie that would allow for emergency water to be provided.
More research is being done.

¢  North Clackamas Chamber Congressional Forum - Staff attended
the virtual forum featuring Congressman Iurt Schrader on May 21.
Congressman Schrader shared insights on federal issues of interest
to Clackamas County. Of particular note was his update on the
future legislation regarding infrastructure funding.

¢  Oregon Water Utilities Council (OWUC) — Update on water related
legislation under consideration in the Oregon Legislature. Updates
from the Otegon Drinking Water Program and Oregon Water
Resoutces Department were also provided. Meeting was held on
May 27.

* Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAQO) Water Committee—
The SDAO water committee met on May 28 to review legislation
and receive updates on the status of bills of intetest to water and
wastewater districts.

3. Emergency Management Report:

Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (INHMP} - On May 3 the draft NHMP was

submitted to the Clackamas County Resilience Coordinator for review
which was completed and returned to CRW on May 7. Updates were made
based on the feedback.

The revised NHMP was sent to the State Planner who is responsible for

NHMP review, The State Planner completed their review on May 28 and
confirmed that there were no updates required by CRW. They were

Agenda Item 8 Page 3 of 5



June 10, 2021

complimentary and noted that the plan included all the required elements.
Since there weren’t any changes required of CRW’s plan, the State
forwarded the CRW NHMP directly to FEMA (Federal Emetgency
Management Agency) on June 1.

FEMA has 45 days to review and approve the plan or request edits. If
approved, we should be notified aftet July 15 which should allow enough
time for the CRW Board to consider adoption of the CRW NHMJ at the

August Board meeting,

Natural Hazard Mitigation — Grant Funding Research - During May, staff

researched hazard mitigation grant options. The Chief Engineer and
Emergency Manager met with the State and Deputy Natural Hazard
Mitgation Officers on June 1. The meeting included the State Planner that
reviewed the CRW NHMP.

Existing CRW projects identified in the Disteicts CIP were teviewed and
key questions were asked to develop a clear understanding of grant criteria,
tequitements, timelines, and options. Additional information will be
provided as grant decisions are further defined.

CRW AWIA Emetgency Response Plan (ERP) - With the NHMP now
under review by FEMA, the focus for June is completion of the nine
Appendices to the ERP and developient of the Incident Action
Checklists by the June 30, 2021 deadline.

Portable Generator Grant Project: The portable generators project is
complete. All generators were picked up by the participating agencies.
CRW efforts to support the grant project were acknowledged by the
participating RWPC members and greatly appreciated.

Safety Update:

Safety Training: Hazardous Communications training has been moved to
the June staff meeting due to a full schedule at the May staff meeting,
Confined Space Rescue and Fall Protection is scheduled for July.

OSHA Consultation: The OSHA atmosphetic testing consultation
occurred in May. The results and consultation report have been received
and is under review. The only required action item from the consult was
the need for installation of a self-contained eye wash station at the 90™
Street Pump Station. The testing results and report will be used to update
the Districts Respirator Protection Program and help define safety
processes related to Respirator Protection such as the requirement for staff
physicals, and voluntaty vs required use of approved respirators.

5. Emergency Manager/Safety Cootdinator Transition: The Emergency

Manager position has been posted to a vatiety of industey job boards and
locations on May 28 with a closing date for application of june 23, 2021.

2021 Drinking Water Quality Report: Assuring our customers and those
who rely on water from CRW that they continue to receive quality water is a

Agenda Item 8 Page 4 of 5



June 10, 2021

primary purpose of the Drinking Water Quality Report. This annual report
is now available on the CRW website at http://bitly/CRW2021WOR .
"This repott provides useful information regarding CRW’s source of water,
our water system, and a summary of CRW water quality monitoring results.

In addition to making it available on the website, the information will be
included in the June billing insert. Postcards will also be mailed to multi-
family residences and others who receive CRW water but aren’t direct
customers. A printed copy of the report will be provided to those who call
our office (503-722-9220) or email us at crw(@crwatet.com.

7. Looking Ahead:

Todd will be part of a North Clackamas Chamber panel discussing the
“State of Water Infrastructure” on June 7.

Clackamas Regional Water Supply Commission (CRWSC) meeting will
be held via Zoom at 4 pm on June 14.

Todd will be out of the office June 17-23.

The agenda preparation meeting for the July Board meeting will be
held on Thursday, June 24 at 12:30 pm.

New Commissioner QOrientation for Commissioner Elect Christine
Alexander will be held on June 30.

There will be no June Work Session.

The July 2021 Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, July 8, at 6 pm.

Agenda Item 8 Page 5 of 5



Agenda Item —10
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 10, 2021

SUBJECT Commissioner Reports and Reimbursement Requests
DRAFT MOTION NO MOTION REQUIRED
EfFFECTIVE DATE

PRINCIPAL STAFF Board of Commissioners

PERSON

BOARD ACTION Commissioner Communications

REQUESTED

DoCcUMENTS

ATTACHED

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND None

ANALYSIS None
STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

June 10, 2021 Agenda lters 10 Page 1 of 1



	06.10.21 Board Meeting Agenda
	AG 1 Res. 04-2021 Adoption of Biennial Budget and Make appropriations for BN 21-23
	AG 1 Re. 04-2021
	AG 1 Form LB-1
	AG 1 LB-31
	AG 2 Consider Second Reading by Title only of Ord. 02-2021 System Development Charges Methodology and Adoption
	AG 2 Ord 02-2021
	AG 2 SDC Final Report
	AG 3 Consider Second Reading by title only of Ord 03-2021 System Development Charges Fee Schedule and Adoption
	AG 3 Ord. 03-2021
	AG 3 Exh. B
	AG 3 Exh. C
	AG 4 Res. 05-2021 Approve Utility Billing Bad Debt Write-off for FY 20-21 uncollectible water bills
	AG 4 Re. 05-2021
	AG 4 Exh. B
	AG 4 Exh. C
	AG 5 Res 06-2021 Establishing Wholesale Water Rates Charged to Sunrise Water Authority
	AG 5 Res. 06-2021
	AG 6 Res. 07-2021  Dissolve the REvenue bond proceeds fund and CIP Bond Construction fund
	AG 6 Res. 07-2021
	AG 7 Consider approval of IGA with Clackamas County for corrections work crew support
	AG 7 Exh. A
	AG 7 Exh. B
	CA 1 Gross Payroll
	CA 1 Earnings Statements
	CA 1 Check History
	CA 2 Cash position and transfers
	CA 3 Project Acceptance: Accept assets constructed under the Forsythe Rd. Waterline-phase 1 project, CIP 19-5251
	CA 3 Exh. A
	CA 3 Exh. B
	AG 8 Management Report
	AG 10 Commissioner Reports and Reimbursement Requests



